ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE & SAFETY DEPARTMENT STATUS REPORT

Faulkner Lake

Maumelle

Five Mile

White Oak

Jaime Marrow
Office Assistant 11

OCTOBER, 2021
BOD
4.3 mg/L (30 Max.)

6.6 mg/L (30Max.)

CBOD

13.4 mg/L (25 Max.)

14.0 mg/L (25 Max.)

LIS
3.4 mg/L (30 Max.)

5.4 mg/L (30 Max.)

TSS
23.5 mg/L (90 Max.)

26.3 mg/L (90 max.)



BN \NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER UTILITY Y

Memorandum

TO: Michael Clayton

FROM: Scott Kerby

DATE: 11/4/2021

RE: Engineering Department Major Projects Status

Dark Hollow Interceptor 2019 CIPP Rehabilitation: The Contractor is 100% complete with
the CIPP portion of the project. The manhole rehabilitation is 90% complete.

Rose City and Military Drive Basins Pipe Bursting 2021 Rehabilitation: The contractor
began working on September 10, 2021. 11% of the pipe bursting on the project is complete to
date.

Rose City and Military Drive Basins CIPP 2021 Rehabilitation: The contractor has
completed approximately 95% of the cleaning and televising in preparation to begin the CIPP
process.

Dixie and Baring Cross Basins Pipe Bursting 2021 Rehabilitation Project: This project
consists of pipe bursting 18,858 LF of 6” and 8” sanitary sewer mains and externally
reconnecting approximately 398 services. Request for authorization to award this project to
Burkhalter Technologies, Inc. is on the November agenda.

Bridgestone Pump Station Gravity Conversion: This project consists of installation of
approximately 2,367 LF of 8” gravity sewer in order to decommission the Bridgeway Pump
Station. Request for authorization to award this project to Diamond Construction is on the
November agenda.

7400 BAUCUM PIKE PHONE (501) 945-7186
P.O. BOX 17898 FAX (501) 945-3716
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898



AN N\ORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER UTILITY S G

Memorandum

TO: Michael Clayton

FROM: Lyle Leubner

DATE: 11/03/2021

RE: Plant Operations Report

White Oak Plant
Barscreen rake #1 awaiting repairs.

Five Mile Plant
e Chlorine pump repaired and back in service.
e Obtaining quotes for access road between treatment and solar plants.
e SCADA based security system installed to alarm during unauthorized access after-hours.
e SCADA programming underway to operate both large pumps in conjunction yet mitigate plant
facility overflow risks.

Faulkner Lake Plant

e Chlorine pump repaired and back in service.

e Chlorine valve actuator built, installed, and incorporated into SCADA to automatically close
should a chlorine alarm trigger.

e Primary Clarifier 3 & 4 sludge pump controls integrated into SCADA to cycle automatically
under normal conditions to reduce organic loading on the sludge storage lagoons.

e Notice of Award sent to Rebuild It Services Group for the Faulkner Lake Clarifier Launder Cover
Project.

General Items
e Annual chlorination equipment preventative maintenance complete.
e Annual flow meter calibrations complete.

7400 BAUCUM PIKE PHONE (501) 945-7186
P.0. BOX 17898 FAX (501)945-3716
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898



AN NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER UTILITY N

Memorandum

TO: Michael Clayton

FROM: Marybeth Eggleston

DATE: 11/02/2021

RE: Environmental Compliance & Safety Status Report

The October safety meeting on “Slips, Trips, and Falls” was conducted via online
activity. The video was posted, an email was sent to all staff with instructions on how
to access it, and the timeline within to watch and send back signed acknowledgement.

Fourth quarter water and biomonitoring sampling for all four treatment plants has
been completed.

7400 BAUCUM PIKE PHONE (501) 945-7186

P.0. BOX 17898 FAX (501) 945-2367
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898



06 8 11 S 4 8 174 4 0T 9 4}
[4°14 8T 14 €T 92 0¢ 8T Ly LC 8¢ 0g
6ee 81T 9eT € 14 9 0 0 e 0 0

710'8T¢ 8T.'2¢ T9V'EE 965'6¢ YA 4 981'9¢ 0LL'Sy 878'3¢ T.9'%€ TvZ've r8'6Y
70v'690'T G/T'OST | €€L'GeT | 6E8'vPT | 9¥Z'80T | 0S0'E8 98599 09T'80T | ¥¥9'6¢T | 25099 6£6°'90T
L 14 0 T 0 0 0 0 T T 0

0g T € 14 T 0T 0 0 T 0T 0

8T T T 0 L 0 T 0 17 14 0
v1¢ 14 11 17 4% 92 LT 14 e 0T 6

6. 6 €T S €C € 9 Z 9 8 17
06¢ G 0 0 60T 4 0 0 qg 09 0
90¢ 0g e T¢ LT €T €T 1 14} LT Sb
174 7e Ge 8¢ /£ 9¢ e LT €¢ 97 T¢

T 0 0 0 T 0 0 0 0 0 0

g9 € € € 9 14 G 9 6 4" 4}
€9¢ 124 0¢ 67 e LT 67 143 9y 9 8¢
€29 1S 144 LS 0S 09 99 €8 06 29 09
2501 06 06 a8 €0t 88 00T 14} LT 66 70T

alA 29Q AON 190 des pny Inc ung AeN 1dy en go4 uer

110day deday YA0MN 81eq-0] -1ed A 1202
Juswiaedag WaSAS suonds||0D MHEIN

juowdoe[day - suondadsuy
MAN - suonoadsuy
(7)) weiSo1d 20UrRISISSY

SOUIT 921A49S

(A7) ALDD ourjedig
(47 Surues) aurjadig

gdueualule|N

300uu0dsI(] - deg,
uone[resuy MoN - dep,
UOnE[[eISU] MON - S[OYUBIA
qeyoy - S[OYUBIA

Jredoy] - ojoyue

(47 M) uado

Jredoy] jurtoq

uoldNIIsuoc)d

PWPO

onss[ urejy 22104 MUIN

anss| o[oyueA 10 UrejN MIAIN
ONSST QUIT JBALIJ

S[[eD M1 2[qNOI],

sysanbay] [B10],

s1sanbay 921AJ8S




S¢
14

6S
RElg]

€¢
v

€9
AON

LT

LT
144
8¢
zs

ikle}

ST

ST
0c¢
€€

474
dag

€1 €1 T ot
6T LT LT 14"
[43 0€ 6¢ 6¢
8¢ 19 €€ LT
3ny Inf unr Aen
6
T ot
€T €T

s1ea\ € 15ET SA @LA 0SS dAnEeNWND

144
9C
ady

6T
144
JeN

i
81
go4

c

© 1N N o

-

Tcocd
0coc
6T0¢
810¢

ot

0c¢

o€

0SS

(0174

0§

09

0L




— MNR

AGENDA FOR
NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER TREATMENT COMMITTEE
MEETING
RE: Committee Meeting
PLACE: Faulkner Lake Treatment Plant Admin Conference Room
7400 Baucum Pike, North Little Rock, Arkansas 72117
DATE: November 9, 2021
TIME: 12:15 PM

(1) RoLL CALL OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS

(2) APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 12, 2021 MEETING

(3) CAsH DISBURSEMENTS FOR OCTOBER 2021

(4) FINANCIAL REPORT FOR OCTOBER 2021

(5) BRIDGEWAY PUMP STATION GRAVITY CONVERSION

(6) DixIE AND BARING CROSS BASINS PIPE BURSTING 2021 REHABILITATION PROJECT
(7) WHITE OAK TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION SOUTH SIDE EVALUATION

(8) BUDGET FOR 2022

(9) RosE CiTY AND MILITARY BASINS PIPE BURSTING 2021 REHABILITATION PROJECT
CHANGE ORDER #1

(10) PURCHASE NEW TRUCKS FOR COLLECTION SYSTEMS MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT

MR
¥



(1)

ROLL CALL of the COMMITTEE MEMBERS




(@)

NEW BUSINESS

ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of the Minutes of the October 12, 2021 Committee Meeting



NORTH LITTLE ROCK
WASTEWATER TREATMENT COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF A MEETING HELD TUESDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2021

A meeting of the North Little Rock Wastewater Treatment Committee was
held on Tuesday, October 12, 2021 at the administrative offices located at the
Faulkner Lake Treatment Plant.

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Matthews at approximately
12:16 p.m. The roll was called, and a quorum was present. Those in attendance at
the meeting were Mr. K.W. Matthews, Mr. Ed Nelson, Ms. Karen Bryant and Mr.
Gabe Stephens. Also in attendance were Mr. Michael Clayton, Director, Ms. Gina
Briley, Mr. Richard Penn, City Engineer with the City of Sherwood, Mr. Sam
Hilburn and Dawn Harmon.

The Committee reviewed the minutes of its September 14, 2021 meeting.
After review, a motion was made by Ms. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Stephens, to
approve the September 14, 2021 minutes. The motion carried unanimously.

Next, the Committee reviewed the cash disbursements for the month of
September 2021. There being no questions or comments, a motion was made by Mr.
Nelson, seconded by Ms. Bryant, to approve the cash disbursements for September
2021 reflecting total cash disbursements of $2,439,174.35 and fund transfers
between accounts of $1,917,900.00. The motion carried unanimously.

Upon motion made by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Mr. Stephens, the Committee
unanimously approved the Financial Statement for September 2021.  Director
Clayton did note there are currently five (5) contracts underway with payments due
in the near future.

The Committee then discussed the purchase of a new excavator. The
Collections Systems currently maintains one excavator for each repair crew. One of
the 18,000 lb. Kubota excavators is in need of costly repairs. The staff wishes to
replace this machine with a new 24 HP Model 35G John Deere Compact Excavator
which is smaller and able to navigate small areas. This item is available through
Stribling Equipment in the amount of $54,708.31 with an estimated lead time of 30-
days.



Compact Excavator Comparison

John Deere 24HP 30-day lead $54,708.31 Stribling Equipment

Caterpillar 24HP 18-week lead $53,825.91 | Riggs CAT

Kubota 40HP Unknown $67,055.00 Web Quote

Caterpillar 40HP 16-week lead | $66,673.00 | Riggs CAT

The 2021 budget includes $106,000.00 for the purchase of this item. After further
discussion, a motion was made by Ms. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Stephens, to
authorize the staff to purchase a Model 35G John Deere Compact Excavator from
Stribling Equipment in the amount of $54,708.31. The motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Nelson provided updates to the Committee for the North Little Rock
Wastewater’s Defined Benefit Pension Plan which met on September 21, 2021. The
July 1, 2021 actuarial valuation report, provided by Jody Carreiro of Osborn,
Carreiro & Associates, Inc., suggest a minimum contribution of $500,000.00. In
2020 the rate of return on this investment was -2%; however, as of July 1, 2021, the
rate of return was 21.3% and the plan was 98% funded. The Retirement Committee
recommends a contribution amount of $600,000.00. An amount of $800,000.00 1is
included in the 2021 budget for the pension plan contribution. A motion was made
by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Mr. Stephens, to authorize the contribution amount of
$600,000.00 to the North Little Rock Wastewater Utility Defined Benefit Pension
Plan. The motion carried unanimously.

Director Clayton informed the Committee that an evaluation is necessary to
determine the feasibility of maintaining the existing Five Mile Creek Water
Reclamation Facilities with continued planning for future improvements, or to
decommission the existing treatment facilities. The staff has discussed the
possibility of converting the existing influent pump station to transport raw sewage
to the Faulkner Lake Water Reclamation Facility. Doing so would economize the
treatment of sewage, including the larger scale handling of biosolids. Significant
planning and improvements will be necessary for regulatory compliance for the Five
Mile Creek Water Reclamation Facilities. It is recommended that a well-qualified
engineering firm that has not been previously engaged by the Utility be hired to
provide an objective analysis for the long-term planning of the facilities at the Five
Mile Creek Water Reclamation Facility. The staff has negotiated with HDR
Engineering, Inc. of Little Rock to define the scope of a feasibility study for the Five
Mile Creek and Faulkner Lake Water Reclamation Facilities with a proposal in the
amount of $111,540.00. A motion was made by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Ms.
Bryant, to authorize the staff to utilize HDR Engineering, Inc. to define the scope of



a feasibility study for the Five Mile Creek and Faulkner Lake Water Reclamation
Facilities at a proposal cost of $111,540.00. The motion carried unanimously.

Director Clayton then advised the Committee that after meeting with ANRC
officials last month it was highly recommended that the North Little Rock
Wastewater apply for a new loan. The original 2016 Revolving Loan Fund was in
the amount of $30,000,000.00. A ten-point project list has been developed, whereas
nine of the projects are for investment into the gravity sewer interceptors within the
collection systems. The estimated cost of the ten-point project list 1s $46.8 million.
It is recommended to proceed with a new loan application for $45 million at an
interest rate of 1.75% for a 20-year term. By moving the $10,812.27 from the 2016
loan at 2.25% interest and applying it to the new loan using the lower interest rate,
a savings of over $50,000 a year can be realized for the next 20 years. The Utility
plans to continue with secondary sewer rehabilitation using general revenues to
invest $4.0 million per year to replace 2% of the gravity sewer lines per year which
1s approximately 68,000 feet per year.

The following shows the status of the outstanding loans:

Series 2001 was for $10,000,000 at an interest rate of 3.25%. The
outstanding balance as of 9.30.2021 is $1,939,880.00. (The Utility is
exploring the option of paying off the loan early)

Series 2008 was for $14,000,000 at an interest rate of 2.75%. The
outstanding balance as of 9.30.2021 i1s $8,293,395.08. (Inquire with
Natural Resources to refinance at 1.75% with the same terms
remaining)

Series 2012 was for $21,000,000 at an interest rate of 2.50%. The
outstanding balance as of 9.30.2021 is $16,222,465.40. (Inquire with
Natural Resources to refinance at 1.75% with the same terms
remaining)

Series 2016 was for $30,000,000 at an interest rate of 2.25%. NLRW
has drawn the amount of $19,187,873 and has made on principal
payment for an outstanding balance as of 9.30.2021 of $18,589,868.
(Transfer the remaining balance of $10,812,127 to the new loan for
reduction of interest rate by 0.05%)

After further discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Ms.
Bryant, to authorize the Finance Department and Director Clayton to proceed with
an application for $45.0 million loan with the Arkansas Department of Agriculture



Natural Resources Division to be considered at the November 17th ANRC
Commission meeting. The motion carried unanimously.

Next, the Committee discussed the Faulkner Lake Clarifier Launder Cover
Project. The plant discharges a clear, high quality effluent that is susceptible to
extensive algae growth on the three, 120 ft diameter Final Clarifier Weirs and
Launders. The housekeeping of these weirs is one major focal point for ADEQ
inspections. To comply, countless work hours have been spent over the years
pressure washing and scrubbing these structures to remove algae growth. This
constant washing has been detrimental to the concrete and has accounted for a
significant Workers’ Comp injury in the recent past. A common industry practice is
to install covers over the clarifier weirs and outer launder. These covers block all
sunlight and inhibit the growth of algae. The staff has advertised for bids for a
contractor to furnish and install said covers and received two very competitive bids
that fit within the $350,000 budgeted for the project. They are summarized as
follows:

Environmental Process Systems (Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic Covers) $338,208
Rebuild-It Services Group (Aluminum Covers) $348,140

Both contractors are capable of the installation, but with only a 3% cost difference,
the Treatment Plant staff prefers the more durable aluminum option. A motion
was made by Mr. Stephens, seconded by Mr. Nelson, to authorize the staff to award
the contract to Rebuild-It Services Group, for the aluminum cover, in the amount of
$348,140.00. The motion carried unanimously.

There being no further action to come before the Committee, a motion was

made by Mr. Nelson to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously, and
the meeting was adjourned at approximately 1:15 p.m.

APPROVED AS TO FORM: RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

K. W. MATTHEWS, CHAIRMAN SYLVESTER SMITH,
VICE-CHAIRMAN/SECRETARY



3)

CASH DISBURSEMENTS FOR OCTOBER 2021

ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of the Cash Disbursements for October 2021 showing total
Cash Disbursements of $3,688,994.98 and
Fund Transfers between accounts of $3,309,700.00.



| ebed

Jojelqiie doo axn|4 uonesqied 009k SOJUOJJO8|T N4 PASTANS

sJ9)|14 sueiquid|\ pue Jaded uonesedag aseyd ./ 070} olpuBIdg Jaysid T92€S
ainonis
OM ‘suoobe] OM ‘dLOM “Jelua) umo] ‘J ‘M Sjoulwas ‘pyY dIXIY ‘sepesijed
‘s||eq4 @b6esQ “|0HON ‘SPOOAA B||sWNe ‘|d SJ8ise|y ‘@4eT ([IH ‘|ooyos ybiH
“Januold ‘py plo exaing ‘Apnp/exaing ‘Yioy exalng ‘leg [eisAin ‘laedey) uoiied
_Omcm‘_sn_ .EOE_<0_>_ .._O_>mZ .._Qcmo UMO | .c:NtOZN_ .UN_ 9IXIY _>v_o:4\®_x_w_
‘UYA 1G/WopQO “IOJABN ‘SPOOAA WINBA ‘@0B|d SI9ISEIA ‘JUOWYOIA ‘|00YdS
UbiH ‘eyes IN-G ‘Apnr/exain3 ‘Aeg [eyshiD ‘49 00 “L9L AmH/aIXIY ‘s|iiH 8besO
‘ploypag meN ‘medenp ‘wopQ/puelebpry ‘puelebpry ‘sepesijed ‘Ui 1g9/WopO
.mocm‘_>>m|_ hw.mucm‘_m_\/_ .wm_‘_som .\Av_o:n_\w_x_m .ror >>>I\o_x_w_ .n_m 20 .U‘_Otumm MBN

‘S|liiH 86esQ ‘pu| sull0D ‘UnY JBAY ‘AB|lBA BjBWNE ‘YI9p/exaInT -s||ig O1108|T G6°L6Y 8L ABisug 092€S

sesse|9 Ajojes 8qong ‘sapelg Aynn ‘siojosuuog ‘xog uonounr - BnoJIYS  #8°G/ "ou| ‘Ajddng ouy08|3 Bol||3 6S2ES

80ua- Jleday 0} sped - | pJep L2'€E Bunnquysig eous s|be3 8G2€S

d114 | @1e9 - Alyuo 801G 9D G6°LS "ou| ‘Buryioo /S2ES

xe| Buipjoyyipn 81els LZoz 1des 80°9vZ vl ulwpy ¢ doueul jo '1deQ 95¢2€S

Jadoo) 1@ 850y P|IM 188} €| djoyue|\ Jamas pasiey 00°0S.°C 071 ‘seloyuey wolsn) GG2eS
8102 paoAoiddy sapiwwo) - Sd aIssen

S10 ‘dLOM ‘d1N sjuswanoidw| ainoniselul - 120z/12/8 - G2/L SOAS J0id 00°0ZL ¥ "ou| ‘siesulbuz s 4STASS

Z plepn - sueday yjeydsy 8z /0¥ "00 uoioNASU0Y plojuel) £62€S

sbnid no ues|n OAd GE'LLT d1 ‘urep g 810D FASTAAS

Jopusp BuoIp-ploA - - aloA TSZES

90IAJIBS WoHUN B 18N ‘SHIYS 0|od 65°82S Sejuln 052€S
ez "M LO. ‘SlliH 86esQ |opoN

‘Aol B|IPWNEIN ‘A %8 T BloulWwsS ‘piojpag MeN ‘USD pljieg OO sliig SeD +v0'LLL ABisu3 ulodisjue) 612€S

aouelnsu| [ejuswe|ddng pled @aAkoldw3 £6°8/¢€ ‘0D "sU| 847 [enin|y uojsog 812G

sdeD Q| ‘sbury [eyo|\ ‘shkey ayeoldng 92 8Jeg pue %007 s|||ig LVZES

6LL WuN g 6EL Hun Aiepeg z1°c9g siepINO Alepeg 9v2es

SUOlEe}SYIT J0} slezzng wiely 8¢°//0°L "0U| ‘Wo9jo8IIquUOlEWOoINY G¥2es

d114 ®0InBS LZ/0L/oL - LLI6  ¥E'042°L 191V v¥2eS

Z'L PIeM ‘d1Td - suedey sseun zz'/Ly "oU| ‘Wied Hn] @ POS sesuexly £¥2es

ldwi 18X00S €L 0¥ '09 Alddng I\ sesuexly Zvees

Jaquieydasg - InQ ues|) R saydya Bumo 00°056 yodjume] sesuerly T¥2ES

usaiosieg OM - Bury [eussyu) ‘leag |10 ‘1ex004dg ‘sBuiesg |leg Z6'9v. L ABojouyos | [euysnpu) paiddy ovzes

IN G - Buiney aseals) z1°2€6 ou| ‘Bunsodwo) uesuswy 6E2ES

uonels i Je¥ep YBIH - siaysepn ‘SINN ‘syog ‘1eyses ‘abueld £0°G0E "ou| ‘Ajddng pai|vy 8€2€S

aoue.nsu| [ejusws|ddng pled 8dholdwz 0g'611°L ov1dv LETES

NOILdI¥OS3A INNOWY Ol 319vAvd #
MO3IHD MO

T20Z ‘'TE 1970100
SIN3INISINGSId HSVO
d3LVMILSVM HO0d F1L1ITHLHON



Z abed

Joydaousyu| 38819 IN-G - .72 - UoEed0] JIaMBS 00'G.Y L ‘09 Buussulbug sewoy ] 982€S
RNOJIIYS @ 9XeT I9)ned - S1s8l Zdd § 00°00S oI 8ud iseL G82ES
Bp|g ulWpy punoly pue uj [0JIU0D 1S9 [BIBUSD) $9°'GY L Jayuan Buisseo0.d Xulwle | ¥82€S
SINUX007 Hasu| UOJAN SS ‘smauog de) XoH SS 61°€E "ou| ‘}jog Jels €8¢ES
Jawiw] ‘eduewIONdd IH [UBS ‘BulT-X UoJAN ‘ued se9 ||IdS ON 0t'18S alemp.ieH Asjuelg ASTARS!
9]BJJUBDOUOYD WNiue)l] ‘S|PMO| PI04-D ‘0'Z dwanx3 |euisnpu| ‘snid AnesH
‘Aeudg Juy/yoeoy ‘ueougnT Bunessuad ‘yuelopoaq ‘uelosjuisiq ‘s;pmo] dn dod 66°8S6°L "0u| ‘sjesiway) edg T82€S
0 P4 SdYdjed Jeydsy |/Zv S[elgje Jejs ulayinog 08¢es
€ pJep\ Ul yeaT Jaje M Xi4 0} Buldno) pue adid 0£'0.S Alddng % adid uiayinos 6.2€S
19941S  uo Jiedal AeemaAlq 40} 8}810U0D) G/ 8LE Auedwo) 81010U0) Moeqlozey 8/2¢€S
Je|0S IN-G - 8lBld P30y 10H [98]S Uoqle)d JO Sod € €0°8EE Alddng aqgn % adid L/1CES
1202/S/01 - 8/, s@injipuadx3 Joj dsinquiidy 18'80% yseD Aned 9/¢€S
sdn) zo Z| ‘suad ‘sauspeg Azl ‘Aleiq X § ‘syoed Jaweal) ‘syoed
1ebng ‘@0 ‘usjeq ‘eleld swep ‘ebpupe) Jauo] ‘eInslS ‘laweal) ‘suasu|
auidg Japuig ‘spu3j yoog ‘siaybiybiH ‘4suo| uekd ‘sjpmo] Jaded ‘sanssi| ‘SyJo4
‘suoodg onse|d ‘Jaded giyz ‘Jeded Adon ‘jowsig oyded ‘ploejuy ‘sebuodg qnios g86°GL8 S10NpoId 99210 Snped G/2€S
adoy wnyeQ ¥6'v< Mue| ondeg 8181o0uU0) UosIa}ad ¥/2€S
aur |en4 ‘dwnd 80'v¢ SS9y sisuped €.2€S
pIn|4 Bulad)s Jemod ‘@zeaujuy ‘sid)i4 JIy ‘sape|g JodIM Ly L. "0U| ‘s3I0)S dAowoINy A|j19Y,0 [ARAS]
¥€1L WU - J9yI4 JIy ‘Juswsde|day pinj4 axelq ‘ebueyd 10 L2202 Jsjuaiea| AN T.LCES
sy3o0|g WBIoA JUBIT ‘19918 ## 01 ‘Bulyieays pajey
1vO ‘Naquemod .z 8907 XIS ‘dDd MaIog Jousix3 *,0Z YoaiiN paadg-¢ exong [e9
-G ‘Yo0oys H1H ‘sdel] an|9 ‘sisyi4 abpuue) ‘uaysng adimsololp ‘18ysng Ajod ‘18S
193008 /18yoley ‘8}0 | SUeIOL}OB|T ‘SaAIBYS ‘siexoeld JIays (Bpig jusnyul Jun O/ 85'Z8EL $,9M07 04¢2€s
[9ABID PEOT | + 17/0) - 82/6 dLOM O} spljosolg speoT 0Z 00°00.°€ "ou| ‘Buiiney ss|ppe) uoq Awwir 69¢C€S
SlIN-G - duel] UO| 8¢ [ejuay UIN 00°00S "0U| ‘90IAIBG [ejudy duel) s,wir 89¢€S
220Z/11/01L O} [emauay (squlq 000°'G) Buneo|4 ayng 08x3 ININMSOUI 00°2LL'S "ou| ‘azAnouu| L9¢€ES
€ pJep\ ‘19ong g Joyenedx3 g pJe\ ‘0g Hoel L ABBng 8¢ 0z [eyuay s,wnH 992€S
19y0e1g 9|0H
-Z‘SIBYSE N 19AIY WNUIWN|Y ‘SIBYSBAN 19AIY [991S O0N.IA Yold ‘Mel)S JOo ajeg
‘J9|Ind 8|qeD uo -t ‘sbuljdnod OAd ‘smodi3 OAd ‘0F U9S DAd ‘sdwe|D ‘Unpuod  87°052 alempleH s,wnH S9¢ES
Bnid GieD ‘Jedwiid “oer |lepn ‘ejeld llep yeulayig ‘Beg
|00 ‘@SOH J0}OBHUOD ‘9SOH Udp.IeD ‘HUnpuo ‘Iabieyd AgL Noed g Aiepneg A8l 85129 $80IAIBS P81 JodaQq swoH ¥9¢€s
S| UODOBA /3yblald + |leg [99y 8SOH unbpueH 9¢€'0L 1 syonpolid Ay pJeusy £92€s
NOILdIFOS3A INNONY Ol 31gvAvd #
MO3IHD MO

T20Z ‘'TE 1970100
SIN3INISINGSId HSVO
d3LVMILSVM HO0d F1L1ITHLHON



¢ abed

T20Z ‘'TE 1970100
SIN3INISINGSId HSVO
d3LVMILSVM HO0d F1L1ITHLHON

abueyd 110 ¥ZL WuN 6295 IO ssa1dx3 poomiays LTEES

qeT - sigyi4 ‘sde) ‘ssog 16°60€°C "ou| ‘ssaldx3 [ejuswuoliAug 9TEES

uone)s dwind Gog AmH ||ig 01309[3  LE'8¢ ABisyuz GTEES

uonduosgng [EnuUY XSBpoINY /2’y 071 ‘suonnios 11d vTEES

SO3 » ¥do@ Juswieal] - swio4 }sanbay aAesT @ spie) ssauisng 9/°0LG 1 Jo Buibew @ yuud [eubig €TEES

191719 AmH Joydeauayu] 19 IN-G - Jledey Aousblew /8°988°¢61 "0 UO)ONIISUOY puowelq 2Tees

abeianQ p e\ Alyyuopy Jaidod ulwpy 99181 xewejeq 1T€ES

SuoN08|0d Ul Od | - Alddng Jemod 8€'ZS julod Bunosuuo) 0TEES

Jequisydag - xe| asiyouel4 19°/80°G6 Y00y 8T YHON jo AND 60€€S

Jaquisydag - xe| aslyoueld €8°/80'v| ajjpwne jo Ay 80€EES

@oueusjulel\ dwnd ‘suoiesadQ ‘geT - s||yoy jdulqed piv isii4 9/'882 sejulo LOEES

JaquIanoN - oIUlD ssau|dM 8 UHESH 00'VLE'S UyeaH Joj Jejuag abueyd 90€€S
uag alxig ‘uas |adeyn

uoike|) ‘ueg supi exaIng ‘usn ¥ deo ‘sexe unsny ‘d174 ‘geT 14 :sliig seD 0€'vE8 ABisu3 juiodisus) GOEES

slleday pos € %9 | PIEM 9€°L61 "OU| ‘W.ed {n| ' poS sesuexly Y0EES

994 ||eD Joquwialdas - 894 Jaquis|\ J8qo10 0162 "0U| ‘WBSAS ||BD-auQ sesueily €0EES

uewn|a - |[emauay asual s,uelduyda|3 000G Buisuaolq x JogeT jo 1daq HY 20ges

Bunsing adid sso1) Buueg aixiq - py [ebo7 868 a)lozen) jeloowa(] sesueily TOEES

sjexoelg 9|buy ‘SIS Pao|S ‘BAjeA |leg ‘uolun DA ‘sieidepy DA 85612 "ou| ‘Ajddng pallly 00€EES

SYjuopy om] - DO Buiidwes yep youeg 00°99% suoln|og [edhAeuy peoueApy 662€S

Zvl nun bumol 00612 Kisnoosy |-y 862€S

1202/01/01 Buipug pousd Aed - saxe] |[oiked |02l ‘Ch usodea( xe| ||0lhed 12-dd

1202/01/01 Buipu3 pouad Aed - suoinquiuog uswalley 00°G€9°C SUOIN|OS JUBWINSY SpImuoleN T2-1VN

aafojdw3 | - welboid ssaujlop\ €61 Jayua) Ajunwwo) YN 162ES

Buinig e|qejey) eakoldws 00'cy Ae\ pajun sesuely jo pesH 962€S

seakojdw3 ¢ - uonebiigo poddng piyd 05°€LS NAs asnoybues|) 3500 G62€S

dwi s|qeD ss ‘sdijQ adoy alM SS Sd Aemabpug/bulls Ba7 9|buls .8 €211/ "oUl 'YSN X8HeD ¥62€S
suolels YIT/sainsojoul ‘sjeyoelqg

loued Bumg ‘spy [aued Buimg ‘dwnd dwng a3 Be IN-G 10} SHed "OSIN 619122 Alddng o1j09|3 sjesajoym €62€S

slapullAD seo Bulplo ey LGt 00S[® M 262€S
yooigyeQ

WNOIIYS ‘dLOM ‘OM/UBWIIBH ‘d L IN-G ‘|00 Jepoys ‘umeT eyaq :s|iig Jolep 81086 sdan 162€S

uoneiqiied g - seled auloyy wddol 8€'0LY ¥ooganig vysn 062€S

dLIN -Xue] uojes G§ ZS'vve uonelodio) dnseld sajels pajun 682€S

}SIOH 8[eA U0 -Z - uonoadsu| Buimojoy 3sioH aAuQg Aydiniy o) siledey +8'+G6 "0u| ‘auel) g ISIOH pajuN 882€S
abieg AN Joy osiy ‘sded

UOJAN ‘©]zzON Moq|3 ‘J8)jid Mue] j1oyseg ‘sdwe|) asoH ‘smalog ded xeH SS 16°08 ue|d upaln Aiddng Joyoes | 182€S

NOILdI¥OS3a LNNOWY Ol 379VAVd #
MO3HO 0



1 obed

dl szddi1sel 00°'G.l¥ o181y 1sal 67EES
UMY X3 malog [edidg G/'Ge "ou| yjog Jels 87€es
Bulys |Ind Jledey 6812 alempieH Asjuels LVEES
suonesadQ - swanx3 |euisnpu] ‘snid ANeaH G6'vL L "0u| ‘sjesiway) edg 9YEES
ule|\ 92104 8ydJel - s}eysen g 8did OAd 86285 Alddng % adid uiayinos GYEES
"0}8 ‘S9SOH ‘Jojeipey soe|day/wa)sAg Buljoo) 0} 82IAISS - $ZL WUN 26 LLL'T aAjjowolny sulAyS YVEES
ge7-saqnl AOD G2'0SLC 9dUBIS 40S EVEES
abuey |10 Z¥L WUN 9S°¥S Jajua) aAljlowoINy §odog crees
paroiddy eapiwwo) S3ISS - LZ0Z/2/6 NIY) SOAS Joid 5" /PS5 0vL "ou| ‘dnoi NPy Trees
Jledey | piep - HId 00°SE "0u| ‘saldy 3eQ 1sod ovees
dLIN - 18wAjod pinbi7 00°08S‘G "ou| ‘08}Ajod 6EEES
Jaded Ado) ‘squiod Japuig ‘spiq ‘sdn) 104 ‘Jaxe |age]
‘slop|o4 BuibueH ‘eie|d swepN ‘dwelg ajeq ‘15941004 ‘pedasnoj |99 ‘pJeoghey
SSaJalIN ‘sabplie) Jauo | ‘lsues|) sua ‘suad ‘Jaded s x| | ‘deweal)
‘1auo0] ‘sjpmo] Jaded ‘senssi] ‘syi04 ‘suoods onseld ‘Jaded 7 ¥Z ‘UYOUMS NAM 727 2ZL°L S}ONpo.id 300 snjjad 8EEES
|[duun4 pue |IQ J0I0N GE'¥9 "0U| ‘s8.0)S dAowoINy A||19Y,0 LEEES
sing uley 9/'/¢ ‘0D sdleg 9pISULON 9€€Es
SOUOJIH JBAIB08Y ‘8ll| 8ledg ‘sae- Juswnooq g Jojlell ZZ0zZ L1'690'6 071 ‘sl9jied | apimuoleN GEEES
abuey) Ja)14 B 10 9€L WUN GZ'ZSL JajuaDies| AN PEEES
dl14 1e sejuAp edain 1eall 00'GLYy juswabeue|\ LIN] [BUOISS8)0Id USaID) "IN ceeeg
UOUMS |0JJU0D R PJOD JaMOd/m peaH Jauulds ‘uy
9]geD YOUIAN ‘[043U0D BJ0WaY/M 8INPOI YOUIAA ‘1oxoelg Bununop youipy/m podul 00°S94'8 0711 ‘qed-N 2EEES
s1s9/\ A1ajes ‘sauon) abuelQ ‘seno|9 Aemy mody] ‘squiog aows /1'9/L°E s|00] % solddng jedpiuniy 197 TEEES
Jaysoog axelg Jemod ‘sbnid 3eds yes pinj4 bulies)s Jemod @0IAI8S - 6L L HUN 68LE1'L "ou| ‘ebeisen s,y 0gees
L1/0L - G/0L dLOM O} spljosolg speo] 0z 00°009°'C "ou| ‘Buiiney sa|ppep) uoq Awwir 62€ES
Bulieag e abueyd 41 OM- duelD Uo] g7 |ewuay Ul 00°00S "0U| ‘92IAIBS |BIUSY Buel) s,wif 82EES
Jleday je|4 €8 HUN 06'LC all] sjejsisu| LCEES
dd1D aaua Aseppin AyD 8soy L# 1S3 ‘sioideolsiul MOJIoH Yieqd v# 1S3 98'8¥H°990°L D71 ‘selbojouyos | wioynyisu| 9cees
sdwe|Q YoIND ‘sadid axej| ‘sadld ‘S L# JUIOP [PAIMS £8'861'L "ou| ‘saibojouyos | DI GCEES
| pJep) - Jowwey Bewog /¢08 ejusy s,wnH 2ees
9)1dS uowwo) ‘saAl( 193003 ‘slawweH abpalS 66°ZEL alempleH s,wnH £2EES
Sl8jled uo 8la.InD ¢1'629 $90IAIG JIpaI) Jodeq SWoH [AARA
OvL# - Wbiau4 ‘Alquessy s|pueH ‘0o 9¢'209 syonpold Aynn pieusy TZees
d1OM ‘d17d ‘dL IIN-S - stepullAD sunolyd 9¢°602°L s|edlway) sololeH 0cees
abuey) |10 8¥L WUN 8Y'9F 9JIAIBG Bl ] 199[d 6TEES
yoa1) deo |ig o093 2061 aAljeladood 013093 isii4 8T€eesS
NOILdI40S3da LINNOINY Ol 3719VvAvd #
NOIHD A0

T20Z ‘'TE 1970100
SIN3INISINGSId HSVO
d3LVMILSVM HO0d F1L1ITHLHON



G abed

T20Z ‘'TE 1970100
SIN3INISINGSId HSVO
d3LVMILSVM HO0d F1L1ITHLHON

adid 1 .9 ‘seAM ‘edid 19yseD 08°/92'8 Auedwod Jsjlemuip) %00y B|IT 6.EES
adoy/m sjexseq 9 slgaq ‘Juled BupieN SHUAN ‘SOA0ID JBALQ €E'1L6 s|oo] ¢ se||ddng [ediuniy 197 8/€€S
6EL 8 OFL SHuN - sebueyd 4oy B 10 6€°L8L 90IAIBG JoM0aINN B 8beles) s,90r LLEES
61/0L - ZL/0L dLOM O} pe|ney spijosolg speo] €z 00°0vL‘Y "ou| ‘Buliney sajppepn uoq Awwip 9/€€5
€ PJEMA - SHGSQ SO INeH @ s8dl] g dAowdy 00°000°C 80IAI9G 8841 s,wip G/E€S
Aiepeg - 621 Wun 6E°EYL Jayua) Alspegq ||y ajeisiapy| ¥/€€S
MES JO-IND YIS GZ'652°L "ou| ‘saibojouyos ] DI €/€€5
leaddy Hwed ¥HdN “Jaulejay ‘loid [e1oads - ydeg esuadx3 [ebe 05°02.Y a.ln ‘4edieH g uinqiiH 2LeeS
syoniL AL - ybial4 - Bupjoed /1 | ‘sjel Bid ‘selquiessy 8|qeD) §6°2SS'C syonpoud Aynn preusy TLEES
swa|qoud suoyd J00ysa|qno. | ‘Suofels suoyd pParoN G/'€/Z IOH 0/€€S
J0Jo|\ JeoD) B pesH Jojdwes pajelabliey Joyies IV 9L'SSH'y Auedwo) yoeH 69€€S
d114 - uoneis Y Jerepn ubiH ebuelq @ edid 0z peoeidey 00°000°C Buiplop S'BH 89€€S
dLIN - J0JO\ Jemolg dH 0G 00°04S'Z suonn|og ABisu3 [eqo|D L9€ES
Jaquieydag Jo YJUuol\ S8[OIYaA 19914 [9s81Q B SED /8'968°CL uewyeny 99€€5
91 nun ebueyd 10 S0°GS IO ssaidx3 poomiays G9gES
Juanul IN-G ‘YINOS IIN-G ‘L# IN-G :SIiig 011093 228298l ABisyuz 79€€S
Jaido) bu3 - abesanQ g aoueuajuie AlYIUOWN L2 'G6L xeweje(q €9€€G
Jojelsuan) gL JUN - IO-18YId €L'¥C D71 ‘YINOS-PIN suwwng z9€€s
(8102/8/2 PaIN0BXT) 3eQ 8NYAA O} UOISIBAI] B|[dwnely
1202 hw_‘ amw r_mso._E 1202 hNN m:< polad @3I0AU| - wuc®E®>o._QE_ alnjonJiselju| oo.mmm_mm “ou| hw._mmr__mr_m_ 1SuD T9EES
19S 19008 [jomdasg
‘SD1dD OAd 2uo) ‘sbulidnod xewAH ‘sbn|d inoues|) DAJXPg ‘soouIdd ZE6ZL‘e d1 ‘uilepy g 8109 09€€S
aouelnsu| [ejuswolddng pied aakoldw3 zZy'6le 817 |eluojon 6SEES
Jamolg dLIN 10} JeyesH 0 vy %00y 81-a3o 85€€S
sJaulm ued 3I4AaH 95 ¥€ D71 ‘sesueyy jo sauisnpu| Apeig /GEES
Jaqi4 pateys Alyuo 02°8¥L 181V 95€£€S
alon - aloan GGEES
JUBJ00D PPV B [[BD 82IMBS/dLIN €6'11E Buiuonipuo) Ay sii4 eousWy ¥SEES
eyl nun bumol €9°161 Kianooey |-y €5€€S
¢ Plepp ->£o._oD uo w.__mam._ >m>>®>_._m_ }IOM 8]810U0) oo.oow.N Hpal) 7 UOSUIA 2SEES
umeT e)eq ‘qeT 14 ‘d17d ‘dLIN ‘eAug Aydinpy s|iig Jerep €6'818°L sdn TGEES
geT - yjolg D4 ‘Jeyng aeydsoyd ‘JoroQ 8doosodlN 8¢ /61T ¥oogenig vsn 0S€ES
NOILdI¥OS3a INNOWY Ol 379VAVd #
MOIHO M0



g abed

llouteA BaI9 - spie ssauisng 005 69°LY 7 jo BuiBew g uud [exbia SOvES
sdoy/sedip Buizniues G/°/¢¢ "0 [edlwdy) jsowslo ejeg YOvEeS
Jaidon ge ‘as1do) sAg |0 - 8beianQ @ @oueusiuleN AJYIUON LO'SLL xewejeq coveS
VdIN 8 G9¢ 82140 dn Bumes swi| enx3 + LZ0g 4890300 Joj Buninsuod 00°00S9 wosues 'y [[olleq 20oves
Japng adid 1eyoley 09t/ d1‘ulep g 8109 TOVES
aulo|yQ e Jawyne4/seqn] Jejeweloy 06°8y. XIOMA [013u0D 00v€S
(seo10AUI Z) Bplg 9SO SWO0Y Jo¥007 Z 90IAI9G uesjesn 20°GrS sejuln 66EES
Bunsing adid AseyiN g AN 8s0Y - L# 1S3 91°€01°86C "ou| ‘salbojouyoa ] Jajeyying 86£€S
epedg 901AI8g 9[IqoN AJYuolN 150122 Aigo 181V LBEES
1aqi4 paleys % 90IAI8S JO [eluag panqusiq/Anoes Jeuseiul 01995 L 181V 96£€S
198[01d JaA0D Japune Jaile|D ayeT Jauyine4-pigqay /pY [ebe1 00°/G1 a)jezen) jeloowa(q sesueily G6EES
Jaheids 41N 10} Jojied] /aseyaind sniding jejepa4 00°0S uswabeuely Aouabiaw3 jo Jdoqg ¥Y V6£ES
21O Uy - Bunsa | lewyouag jonuo) Ayeno 81 ez suofNn|os [ednAjeuy peoueApy €65
120Z/42/01L Buipuz pousd Aed - sexe] ||0ihed 80°/18°CY usodeq xe] |j0lhed 2z-dd
1202/%72/01 Buipug pousad Aed - suonnquiuo) Juswalildy 00°GE9‘C SUON|OS JuBWBINRY BpIMUOEN 2Z-1VN
L2/¥2/01 Buipuz jjoihed 8skojdw | - weiboid ssaujlsp\ €6'1 Jaus) Aunwwo)d YN 26€€S
L2/¥72/0) Buipu3 |joihed Buinig ojqejuey) eakojdw 00l Aep pajun sesueyiy Jo pJesH T6E€S
L2/¥2/01 Buipuz jjoihed seshojdw3 ¢ - uonebiigo poddng piyd 0S°€LS Nas esnoybues|n 3500 06€€S
SpyY qor _._ov_mE 99J0D .m__.:uoE Yavos nw®>_._h_ pieHX¢Z .mc_gwm_\/_ 29lluwo)
sayounT ‘pieoglayioly ‘sdwnd uonoslul 8uLIOIYDXg ‘8pped jeog ‘Uleyd 8o0 L1°282'c pJeDd ypal) - yueg [eluusjued| Zz-1LNAJO3 13
(12/21L/01 paroiddy sspiwWwo)) uolNgUIUOY Ue|d uoisusd [enuuy 00°000°009 SO0IAIBS [eloueUl{ 8slduswy 68€€S
d11d ‘dl IN-G ‘'SUoDoBA ‘UNOIIIYS ‘dLOM ‘dLIN :8dIAeS Jeysdwing €1'6£9°L Juswabeue|y 8jsep\ 88€€S
sped! g sauoyd (9D 1o} 921A18S B|IqON #0'818°C SS3JaJIM UOZIIBA LBEES
0 PJEMA - XOg youall 9%'199°L s|ejuay yequng 98€€S
memmgmwﬂ .wv_oo_m_
leuln ‘48| dsepn ‘Je)sebiq JopQ ‘enssi 8]0 ‘S|omo | plofyniAl ‘s|emo dn dod zeL26°L "ou| ‘sjeoiwsy) edg G8EES
sileday | piepn - ¥1A 00°02 "0u| ‘saJoy 3eQ 1sod ¥8€€S
%0018
190D U] JBjuld ‘spIT ‘sdnD JoH ‘Jexe\ [9geT ‘siepjo4 Bulbuey ‘Jeded /| X L €€°001) sjonpold 920 sNiad €8€€5
Jap|oH pJe) ssauisng 8L°LL JodaQ 8210 Z8€es
sjo0g ‘}nsuley ‘SeA0|9) SJoALQ JeYyleaT 8z y8l "0 sd|es apISYHON T8EES
aoe|d puelhie|y led pu] 0Fy-| ‘I8SD |4 ‘qe 14 ‘BUON 9218 ‘@1eD OM
‘BUON g¥Z6E ‘BUON gG108E ‘1d 99l duld ‘poomaye] ‘pu] wnoneg ‘Burx ssaidAp
‘puj suleH ‘Buix Jauyineq ‘umeT Byaq ‘}oH/MoolgsueT ‘eixiq ‘|00 Jeuoys
‘auljjeghe|n/Aemoles MooigneQ ‘201 AMH ‘Jule|y Jueld 14 ‘ulwpy 14 ‘Ise3
puejliepy ‘uoobe 8BpN|S 74 ‘d.LT1d ‘BNOJIIYS ‘4emolg T4 XOIJIA :S|lig OMI0B|T LY 6E0°9E 0}08|3 00y B[} YUON 08€€S
NOILdI¥OS3a INNOWY Ol 379VAVd #
MOIHO M0

T20Z ‘'TE 1970100
SIN3INISINGSId HSVO
d3LVMILSVM HO0d F1L1ITHLHON



) 9bed

aouelnsu| [eyuaws|ddng predaid @akojdw3 GG 640°L ‘07 9ouelInsu| [euoleN uojbuiysepn 9evES
skemaAlq ¢ - sileday 8)810U0d 00°001L°E UpaI "] UOSUIA GEVES
2/l ‘vl ‘8/S ‘8/c /Bulanl 18'0L€ uonelodio) dnseld sajels pajun vEVES
Buiuies ] JoyesadQ | sse|n Buunp asuadxa youn| asiNquisy zZzZ'61 umolg sewoy | ceYeES
deog ysep JeQ jo wniq [e9-GS 81°062 juswdinb3 |91 zeves
1S UIBZ 0} [9AeID) JaAlled S1°GL2 Bunonu | Jswin4 Auuog TEVES
JswAediano aoueInsu| JoO punjey zZzZ'26 “Ip ‘suibbouog aluuoy 0SvES
aakojdw3 | - Vv, Sse[D Joj Bulutel | 7D SH99M ¥ 00°000'y 0771 Buutel | a0 %00y oAy 62VES
JoJol 199y L)L Hun 027089 juswdinb3 g yoni] siemod 82VES
91 X 9| 8je|d pa||oY 10H [98)S uogled GL'0G Alddng aqgn % adid 12VES
Jaweal) ‘sioyle 92v€S
aldieys ‘suad |99 ‘deog aoly ‘Yoog juswiuioddy ‘sabpuiied yu| ‘Jepusied |[ep

‘spedysa ‘siauueld | ‘Jaded AdoD H001S pie) ‘sdng J0H ‘@809 ‘usjoidnq| €768 SJoNpold 9210 sniad
S90IAIS [eHojuer AJYJUON 0£°620°L "oU| ‘OM ] ®DINIBS S, 1O GZves
Alqwessy puejs vZres

‘anH [99YM ‘SOA0ID) JayieaT 18X008 ‘ajuy ANnn ueewniniy [exbiq ‘|eey 8soH /6°09€ upaiQ apei] duQ [eyded
syjuow z| - uonduosqng xa|4ele] d|quiliL 06 651 "ou| ‘soluosjos|3 uonebineN €2VES
JaquianoN - eouelnsu| yyesH esholdw3 02 99 ueld Jouag uyyesH ledidiuniy zzves
S90IAI9G [ebe] pledaid @aholdw3 0768 plaIys [eba TZrES
dwejd 3D 0ZveS

10}09A\ Youl-g ‘Juied BuBlel\ SIUYAA ‘SBA0ID) JomaS ‘saA0lS) JayjeaT ‘sjoog diIH 26°/10°L s|oo g saljddng |edioluniy 7187
G pJe\ pedH Jopjulds Jiedey 0} shed 09'G Auedwo9 Buijeay 6TYES

anAleien Aepn-€ dn wuepp JauaAuo) ‘quol4 1sneyx3 ‘JoIUnN-9€ |
HUN {aMP siojoy 9sIq 9oe|day g SA0WSY ‘SHY axelg osiq Jeay ® Juoid-gel IUN 88'GLE'E 9OINIBS J9XDBINN B BbeIeD S80r 8TIVES
GZ/0l - 61/0L dLOM O} ps|neH spljosolg speo /L 00°090°€ "ou| ‘BuineH ss|ppe uoq Awwip LTVES
uonels Y #n||IYsS - Buol 38y 0| ‘[9Ad] 8qoud julod 0L Z9'60€°L '0Q buusauibug JajA ] yoer 9TYES
sbuiuado qol 1oy syoay) punolbyoeg [eulwll) X 9 00°ZSL Sesueyly JO YJOM}aN uoljewloju| STYES
sJojesauas) uonels duind Joj |9salq ‘pini4 Isneyx3 [8salq 28 06€ ou| ‘uewdeyn ® usal9 YIVES
Jaquieydag 4o} sjunoddy pajiig 80k LE OV ousIg Jomag abply [oAel ETVES
[oAeID) @ BUO)S ZG°L8S SeLUeND UIBJUNO|\ SHUEID 2TveS
auuolyd ‘d1IN ‘OM ‘lIN-G - slojlenjoy X & €7°89/°L Jaburels TIVES
‘Bpig ulwpy 8xeT Jauyned juswaoe|day Jooy 00°9.E°9S "ou| ‘Buyooy Asje.d 0TYES
Jaquieydeg pajos||0) 994 399Q 00°GZ0'Y pieog salj|ioe4 susp.leo exaing 60V7ES
ureiN d1IN ‘vSd dLIN ‘1ey/b3/e6ins d1IN :siiig 0U309[3 L8'7.6'VL WIS UE! 80VES
(1ol184d " 10} $S800Y YeQ SNUAN) JORIWSURI | HI[D OOIN Buly Jooq SZ'€92 Bunnquysig souad ajbe3 LOVES
(1osealbop aul| Jomas) - || Jemod 18 0G99/ "ou| ‘|oJu0) 100y s8N 90¥€S
NOILdId0S3a LNNOWY Ol 319VAvd #
MO3HO M0

T20Z ‘'TE 1970100
SIN3INISINGSId HSVO
d3LVMILSVM HO0d F1L1ITHLHON



g abed

86'766'889'€ SININISYNESIA HSYO SANNH 1TV TV.LO0L
- S$Y08UD 91,02 SeUeS
Stz 804 Jualea|) Alyuop
Gt'865°6.E smeiq v4av
81°886°ZE) 1202/%2/01 Buipug pouad Aed
09°€0L €L 1202/04/01 Buipug pousd Aed
0€'9/2'210'E SININISYNESIA HSVO TV.LOL
NOILdI¥OS3a 1INNOWY 01 378VAVd #
MO3IHO M)

T20Z ‘'TE 1970100
SIN3INISINGSId HSVO
d3LVMILSVM HO0d F1L1ITHLHON



| ebed

00'00L'60€'E $

1 2/62/01-12/S2/01 UO pled s199yD aqehed sjunoddy Joj Jajsues | James Bunesodo 00'002'G69S ¢ 120z/62/0)
12/92/01 uo seakojdw3 0} pled ‘1.z/¥2/0} Papu3l pouad Aed 1o} Jojsuel | James llolked-bunessdo  00°000°€El  $ 1202/S2/0)
61/01 UO pled s309yD aqeded sjunoody Joj Jojsuel | James Bunesado 00'00L'cy2 ¢ 1L20Z/6L/0L
L2/SL/0L-12/11/0) UO pled s}oayQ aqeded sjunoddy Joj Jojsuel | James Bunessdo 00°006'929°L $ 1202/SL/0L
L2/2L/0) uo seakojdw3 o) pled ‘1Z/01/01L pepu3 poliad Aed Joj Jajsuel | Jamss lloJAed-Bunessdo 00'00L'vEL  $ 1202/8/0L
9/01 Uo pied s309yQ aqehed sjunoody Joj Jajsuel| Jameg Bunesado 00°006°20L $ 1202/9/0}
NOILdI¥OSs3A NOYd oL 1INNONYVY 31va

T20Z 'TE 18q0100
SH3I4SNVdHL ANN4

d31VMILSVM XO0d F11LLI'THLHON



NOILdIFOS3A INNOINV

T20¢ ‘TE 418Qq0100
AdNN4 NOILONE1LSNOD 910¢
SIN3INISHNGSId HSVYO
d31VMILSVM HO0d F'11LLI'THLAON

Ol 37avAvd
MO3HO



(4)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR OCTOBER 2021

ACTION REQUESTED

Approve the Financial Statements for October 2021.



T a8ed

Z17208°19¢'CS1S

0,719L'€2y'C$

00'PEC'1S2'CS
0L7/26'LLLS

Z6'9L1°00¥'62L$

SV 1/6'V6v'S8S)
9/°989'118'8$
/¥ 19€'180'SS$
66°/89'G8.'2L$
£9'8/9'S€Z°L$
L6°0€5'SSE ve
60°/88'051'8/$
0Z'202'852'68$
98°¢$5'S20'ZL$
9'0L8'BEL'ES

06'825'8€5°02$

20'62S'CL LS
0,.'6CL°0L8
G€'C/1'97$
62'21£'869
LY'6ZL'VS
LBYYI'ErSES
vC ¥6$
18'886°0.2'01$
697 /20 11198
00'005$

1202 ‘L€ 18q03oQ ‘Aepung
J93yg asuejeyg
19)JeMIISEAA X0 3T YUON

S13SSV vlol

S13ISSVY ¥3H1O V10L

NOISN3d OL d3LV13d SMO141LN0 d3d¥343a
ANGVAITOTY APNWO FIXIY
S13ISSV ¥3IHLO

INIWLINDI % LNV1d 'ALd3d0™d TVLOL

NOILVIOTA43A A3LVINNNO OV
SSIHO0Ud NI NOILONHLSNOD
S3ANIT 93IMIS 470 40 ANTVA "LSH
INIFNINOT WILSAS HIMAS
ONIATING AYOLVHOaV
SONIATNG "ON3 8 "LNIVIA 8 NOILVHLSININGY
SFANLIONYLS INVId INFWLVYIHL
SIANITWILSAS HIMIS
SAYNLONYLS NOILVLS ONIdWNd
anNv1

INIWJINDI B LNV1d ‘ALYId0¥d

S13IASSV LNIHYHND 1v.LOL
SASNIAX3 AIVdIdd d3HLO
JFONVHNSNI NOILYSNIdWOO SYIHNHOM dIvdIdd
JONVANSNI ALINEVIT AIVd3dd
AHOLNIANI 3LIS-NO
FN1GVAIFOTY LSTYILNI AdNHOIV
J1dVAIZOId SLNNODJVY
SINNOOJV ONIATOH Vv4av
11SOd3A 40 s31LvOIdILY3D
MNVE NI HSVO
HSVO ALl3d

SL3ISSV LNIHAIND

S13ISSVY



7 38ed

2L 7208°19€°251$

86°/80'C€0'€0}$

08'.66'628'S$

/87188'¢9¢'6V$
08'8.8°22.°L1$
1G'622°0LL'0ES

69',0€'851'8¥$

00'P81°21L9%
00'658'LSY'ZS
00'89.'0v1$
/8°€v6'829'L$
Gh'SEL'S86' L1
15'G68'7S.'SLS
6.°650'066°/$
L0'9S¥'629'L$

S Ly LLLLS

19'129'89%
(89'6.¢9)
GL'¥€0'8pCS
or vr9'eer$
00°6.8'c$
06'2L0'C8L$
9L'€£9'8e$
GZ'GLL'96LS

1202 ‘L€ 1940390 ‘Aepung

13)EM3)SEM %90 31117 UMON

183yg asuejeg

ALINO3 ® S3ILINIAvVIT TVLOL

ALIND3A TVL1OL
(SSOT) / ANODNI LAN HvIA LNIHAIND
SONINYVYI INIVLIY
Iv1lidvd a3 1vNOoa
TVLIdVYD A31N9I¥LINOD

ALIND3

SAILITEVITHIHLO VL0l
SNOISNAd OL A31Vv13d SMOTANI 3943430
ALIGVIT NOISNAd L3N
Y dSVO-NOILVYOI1g0 8340
TVSOdSIA d1I0S-018 JOd INGISTY
910¢ SAIHIS-IT18VAVd SANOY
¢102 S3AIYIS-19vAvYd SANOg
800¢ SAIYIS-IA18VAVd SANOY
1002 S3HIS-319VAVd SANOE
S3ILMgvil ¥3HLO

SAILITGVIT INTHHND TV1O0L
J19VAVd LSIFHFLNI daANHOJV
S1143N49 3TAO0TdWI d3INHOIV
JAYIT NOILVOVA AINYIOV
JAVIT HMOIS dANHIOIV
SNIAHVYO vXIANT OL F19VAVd
A19VAVd 334 ISIHONVHS
S1OI-1SId d9H1O OL d3ImMO
F19VAVd SINNODDV

SALITNGVIT LNFHEND

s3ALmavin



19°089'970°61$

Ly 1p0'86%°0C8

00°000'Gv0'61$

0y 296'ChL$ LE'PEL'GSS 00'000°9v$
8G'9PS VS pE98S LS 00°0$
19'0£2% 8c'eels 00°0%
$6'86¢€ v 00°0% 00°0$
8L 2E8'LES ¥5'90.'6L$ 00°000'vZ$
20'656'1L0LS 6180128 00'000'¢Z$

LZ€L.'€06'8LS

91 €LECPP'0CS

00'000'666'8}9$

8v'082'/$
000SG'L1$
00'081%
00'06}'€€S
00ZrE'LOLS
r'269'61¢€%
16'669'73
Zr615'161%
09'82+'69v°1$
(96°099%)
0L'GZE'Phs
S96LZ'LLLS
91°220'799'2$
90°'/2.'p85'Z$
1E€164'S6Z'L1S

20'90¢£'s$
00°0S5'L1$
00'685%
00'085'62%
65G1£'85%
66'0.£'2928
96'¢S2'1LS
£¥'070'12¢$
$9'00£'€8' LS
(15'296%)
€1°8/9'2v3
AR T4 24>
60'096'6v8'C$
6£'960'62.'2$
YpZSP'08E'TLS

00°0$
00°000'6$
00°0%
00°000°c€S
0003
00'002'S0€%
00°000°L$
00°000°22}$
00°00L°49%'L$
00°0%
00°006'¢v$
00°00L pEr$
00°00€'089'¢$
00°000'965'C$
00°008'20€°L LS

0¢0z
Jlva OL ¥v3A

€ 33eq

(FA)r4
31vd Ol ¥v3A

139ang
ALvd Ol ¥v3A

120Z 'L€ 1290320 ‘Aepung Buipug syjuop uay ayl o4

JUIWIIe}S AWOoIU|
19)eMIISEM 20y SPIT YMON

3NN3IAZY TVLOL

INNIATH ONILYVHTJO-NON TVLOL
JWOONI SNOINVITIOSIW
J3INYv3 SINNOIDSIA
SILON-IWOONI Q3INYVI LSTHIALNI
ONIMOIHO-IWOOINI AINYVI LSIAHTLNI
SILIYNIIS-TIWOONI AINNVI LSIHALNI
IANNIATY ONILVHIJO NON

INNIATH ONILVHIO TvLOL
SNOILVYOI4103dS 8 SNY1d M3IIAIY
SLIW¥3d ONILLND 13341S B dvL
SLIN3d NOILO3dSNI TvILYYd
SLINE3d NOILO3dSNI NOILOINNQD
S3IOYVHO 334 NO-3IL
‘WO 8 'SAY-SIOYVHO I34 3LV
STOYVHO 334 JLVT AYLSNANI
SIOYVHO ALTYNIJ/ADHVHIUNS AYLSNANI
SIOYVHI YVINDIY AHMLSNAN!
ANN43Y IOUVYHD FDINNITS
SAOUVYHO FOIAYIS HIWOLSND
SIAOUVHI INFWLVIHL AOOMYIHS
SIOYVHI JVIAYIS ITITNNVYN
S3OYVHO JVIAYAS YN 3AISLNO
SIOYYHI IDINYTS HIN JAISNI

ANNIATY ONILYHIdO

JNNIATY



9/'660'988'V1$

62°08C'GEE' VLS

00°00S'26v'9L$

96°05v'€96$ 90'185'6£6% 00005°€S0°1$
96 0S¥'€96% 90'195'G£6$ 00'005'€S0°1$
08'¥¥0'c26'ELS £2'669'66E£'€1$ 00000 PPP'GLS
66'7SL'16$ $G 9T LLS 00°000's21$
07'6.9'P59% 05'258'€09% 00'000'9/9%
SV LLL'EZP'ES LE¥Z1'609'CS 00°000'09.'c$
66'18.'25% (58'981'GL$) 000%
Ov'S€5'695 1S p81L6L'L0F' LS 0000Z'1.9°1$
18°199'26¥% £G°€P6'66S 00'00.'G/5$
IS 1ZPLLE'ES G/ '610'€8L'cS 00°000'9v2'€$
9/'766'/8/3 69'/21'6283% 00°000'v06%
£8°p8.'661% ££'698'c2Z$ 00°000'9.2$
8y /99'20€$ 9 0ZY'062$ 0000b'8LYS
8eLZL'pES Z6°€ZY'SES 00'000'8€$
v2'TL8'8rLS 1v9LZ'651% 00'00L'91L$
6£°G/1'GES 95°1/1°128 00°0$
66°208°LYLS 16622°1E1$ 00°00}'971$
2.652°CLLS S6'LISEPLS 00°00Z'151$
Ov'SS9'8/1$ ¥8'919'061% 00°00L'891%
ZL'£05'92% LV2I0b'9LS 00°000'25%
9£'88€'261% $6'086'98% 0000¢'8L1$
6£°08b'0VLS 8£°9/6'Z113 00°00.'2.18
ZEOLY'EILS v0'969'€E1L$ 00°000'6.1$
LL'€9E'881$ 1Z0.8'01$ 00°000'61$
16°€LL'102'LS TGSE6'E20°LS 00009'228'1$
L99VL'GLLS 06'Zv5'801L$ 00'000'SZL$
L0'202'LL1LS 01'GL6'€ZL$ 00008'vZ1$
LLY6Y'ShS 80°695°5Z$ 00°000'c9%
bS 282'98% zT'965'c8% 00'008'S0L$
96°€0£201$ 66°000'801L$ 00'000'621$
0z02 1202 13oang

JLva OL¥VIA

¢ a8eyq

3lva OL Hv3A

Jiva Ol yvIA

1202 ‘L€ 18q0120 ‘Aepung Buipu3g syjuopy uay ay) 104
jUBWAeRIS AWOIU|
13JBMIJSEAN HI0Y 31T YJON

S3SN3IdX3 TVIOL

SISNIdXT ONILYHIJO-NON TV.LOL
SANOg 11v-193a NO 1S3¥3LNI
SASNIdXT ONILVHIJO-NON
SISNIdXT ONILYHIHO TVLOL
SIASNIdXT AILV1TH SWND
3ISNAdX3 NOISNAd
31DIHIA NON-ISNIAIXT NOILYIOIHJIA
STYSOdSIA ALYTIHOHd NO (NIVD) SSOT
IALLYHLSININGY
LNIWLYYd3A NOILVLS diNNd
INIWLHYCAIA INTWLYISL
1d3A AL3AVS B 1dINOD ANT
"Ld3A ONIYIINIONT TYHINIO
I21440 ONIYIINIONT
MHOM NOILYDO
S# MAUD NOD-OVA
r# MIND NOD-OVA
£# MIYD NOD-OVA
Z# MIND NOD-OVA
L# MIND NOD-OVA
L# MIYD ONIQAOY ¥3IMOd
v# MIYD HIvdIY
£# M3 YD HIvd43d
Z# MIYD HIvday
L# MINED HIvdad
TYHIANTD-SWILSAS NOILDTTI0D
Z# M3IYD NOISIAT 1AL
L# MIND NOISIATIAL
MIHD FAINA HIAMOJ
MIHD JTOHNVYIN
M3IYD T19N0YL
SIASNIAXI ONILYHILO



£6'166'98V'Y 08 166'628'S 00°009'€5€'2

000% {15'289'8¢19) 00'0%

62 ¥OL'vLES 00'0% 000%

(00'168'6€$) 0003 00°0%

by'929'62% 00 0% 00°0%

(59'p60'LE$) (218'988'¢61$) (00°006'€61%)
S8'¥8L'00L'r$ 81°292'291'9% 00'005°.5'2$

0202 1202 139andg

31Va OL d¥Vv3A

S aded

31va Ol ¥v3IA

31vQ Ol ¥V3A

ISINOYdINOD INNOJJY TYNT / ISINOFJWOD TIYNT SSTNISNDa

(SSOT) INODNI L3N
(«+) SSO10V3A/O38
SLNIWISHNGNIIH VNI A
S3DIAYIAS 3AISLNO
ANTYA ALYI40dd QI LYNOQ
SUIVdIY ADNIOYINT
SW3Ll TYNSNNN
3¥04349 (SSO1) IWOINI LIN

1202 ‘L€ 1290320 ‘Aepung Buipug syjuolp uaj sy} Jo4
JU3WL}E}S SWOIU|
1912M3JSEAN N30 31T YHON



19°089'9¥0'61 ¢

0L'ZL6'866'L$

Ly /y0'86V'02%

2L22T'60L'2S

OY'296'CvL$ Z8'vv0'8$ LEPEL'GSS 99°G5€'v$
85 9pS'¥$ 00°0% pe98G LS 09'9¢€'L$
£9'0€2$ 82'8¢s 82'ceqs 65°1%
G6'86Ev$ 8G°8Vv3 00°0% 00°0%
8lzes'les 99'818'¢$ ¥5'90.'61% 90°¢69°L$
20'656'1L01$ 0€'6€LY3 $1'802'12$ Lyize'Ls

12°€l2'c06'8L$

82'298'066'L$

9L'€LETrI 0TS

90°/98'v01'2$

8¥'082'L$
00°055'L1L$
00081%
00°06L'ce$
00°Zve'L0LS
Zr'ze9'6LES
16'669'V$
Zv'615°161%
09'82¥'69V'L$
(96'099%)
01°G2E'vr3
G9BLZLLLS
91'2Z0'v99'CS
90'/21'¥8S'Z$
L€162'G62'LLS

00'000'2%
00'008'2%
00°0%
00'656'2$
00°020'82%
LZ0vL'vrs
00°0%

95 vBY'Z 1S
oF vr0'spLs
00°03%
9629V Vs
69°122'11%
01'118'892%
by 8v6'592$
0£'698'261'1%

20'90£'G$
0008S'L1$
00°68S%
00'085'62%
65°G1€'95S
66'02£'282%
96°¢G.'LS

€Y 0p0'1228
¥9'00€'¢8¢'L$
(16°2969)
£€L8.9'2v8
AR T A2 2
60'096'6%8'C$
G£'960'62.'C%
pp'25'08€'2$

00°0%
00°05¢3
00'0%
00°090'c$
00°0%
6£'989'2€$
L0'€9Ls
12°0.8'6%
09€LZ'8rL$
000%
11°882'7%
00'/82'v¥$
6T 1p0'662$
86°/12'€87%
6£'281'G82°1L$

ozoe
31vQa Ol ¥vaA

g aded

0z02
¥3g0100

Lzoz
3Lva OL ¥v3A

Leoz
¥390190

1202 ‘L€ 1890390 ‘Aepung Bugpug SYUOW ua ] 8y} 104

JUSWaAle}S 3WoIU|
19]eM3)SEAN HI0Y 3BT YHON

ANNIATE TVIOL

INNIA3Y ONILYHIJO-NON Tv10l
ANODNI SNOIANVTIIISIN
Q3NYV3I SINNOJSIA
SILON-IWOIN| AINYVI LSIYILNI
ONIMOIHO-IWOOINI A3INHVI LSTHILNI
S3LRHNDIS-IWOOINI INHYI LSIHILNI
JANNIATY ONILYHIdO NON

JNNIATY ONILVYY3I4O0 IVLOL
SNOILYDI4103dS ¥ SNV1d MIINTY
SLIWY3d ONILLND 13341S ? dV1
S1IN3d NOILO3dSNI TvILdvd
S1IWd3d NOILO3ASNI NOILOIANNOD
SAOUVHO 334 NO-3IL
‘WOJ ? 'STY-SIDUVHD 334 1V
SIADUVHO 334 F1v1 AYLSNANI
SIADAVHO ALTVYNIJ/FOUVYHIENS AHLSNANI
S3OUVHI HVINOIY AYLSNANI
ANNATFY IOYUVHI ADINGIS
SIOHUVHO JVIAYIS HAWOLSND
SIADAVHO LINTFWLYIHL AOOMYIHS
S3ADUVYHD IFDIAYAS IT1TINNVIN
SIOYVYHI IDIAY3S HIN 3AISLNO
SADUVHO FUAYIS YN JAISNI

INNIAIE ONILYHIHO

ANNINTY



9/°G67'998' V1S

29'00Z'6vv°1$

62'08C'SEE VLS

G0'ZE6'POE'LS

96°0S'€96% £9'690'26% 90'185'G<6$ £0°201°'98%
96°0St'£96% £9'690'/6% 90'18G'G£6$ £€0'201'98%
08'¥90'€26'C L3 66'¥EL'ZGE LS €2'669'66€'CLS 200£8'812'LS
66'vS1'16% r8'198'6$ vS9£2'LL% 16°€6G'9$
02'629'v59% 19°160'59% 05°758'€09% (€0'6$)

IN VAR A A% oc'vey'Lses 2£921'609'¢$ 25°068'0.¢$%
66'182'75% {00'5£5$) (58'981'51%) (00'255°2$)
0P'6€5°'695°L$ 95°/8V'L81% v8'161L0V' LS 96'260'2¢1%
18°199'T6v% £€1L°916' LS £S5 Eh6'6¥5S 98'v8r'GpS
157 1Z¥'LLE'es 116212828 G/610'c8l'cs 10°€0£'292$
9/'v66'28.% 09°£2€'89% 69'/21'629% v6'880'G.8
£8'v8.'661$ 0L°0LL'8L% ££'698'c223 Z8°0LL'8LS
8Y'/99'20¢% 86°256'0£$ v9'02r'062% 82°,09'82%
8¢ LZL'PES 00'sop'es Z6'cZY'sed vE'566'cS
v2'7.8'8¥ 1% v0'895'GL$ 1p'9.2'6E1LS 12°501'01%
6€°G21'6e$ 95°2¢Z'v$ 9% 121223 G8'9z1'8%
66°L08'LY1% 1ZThY'SLS 16°62Z'LELS ££'969'91%
ZL°6SZ'cLLS LE'ZSL'LLS G6//G'EPLS £€8°208°91%
0v'659'841$ 20°0.9'02% p8919'061$ 25'8€2'0¢%
Z1°€05'92% v5'689'L% L1L200'9L$ 66'€20'cs
9¢'88€'261% 61°988'22% G6°086'98% 00'0%
6£°08P'0VLS 19°996'L1$ 9£'9/6'2L1% PS'GEL'9LS
2E0iv'cole 8L'162'9L$ Y0'969'€ELS A2 T TR
Ll'cog'asl$ 62292'12% 12089718 JAN S TA AR
16'€12'102'13 0L'vbv' 6% 25°6£6'¢20' LS vS '8y 'G0LS
19°9pL'GLLS €€°122'01% 06°2v5'801L$ 28218 LIS
L0'Z02'LLLS 20'€9L'01% 0L'G£6'€Z1% £0'062°Z1$
LL'v6Y'SP$ S9v68'cS 80°695'6ZS 62'066$
vS'282'98% ZreLe’Ls 22'96£'¢8% £€2'9.0'L1L$
98'€0€'201$ LP'G8E'0LS 66°000'801$ 1G'6€0'11$
0202 0202 1202 1202
31vQ 01 ¥V3IA 4340120 31vd Ol dv3A 33490100

/ 98e4

1202Z ‘1€ 18g039Q ‘Aepung Buipusl sYuow ua] ay3 Joy

juauwajejs awody|
lajemaisep 130y I YUON

S3ASN3IdX3 VIOL

SISNIAXT ONILYHIJO-NON V1Ol
SANOA Tv-183d NO 1S3 UNI
SASNIJX3 ONILYHIJO-NON
SIASNIdX3 ONILVHIHO TVLO1L
SASNAAX3 A3LvT1IH SWIND
ISN3IdX3 NOISN3d
F1DIH3A NON-ISNIdX3 NOILVIOTHd3d
SIVSOdSIA ALYIJOHd NO (NIVD) SSOT
JNLVHLSININGY
ANIWNLAVYC3A NOILVLS dWNd
ANIWLHVIA INFWLYIHL
14340 A134YS 8 1dNOI'AN3
"1d30 ONIYIINIONT TWVHINTD
301440 ONIYIIANIONI
HYOM NOILYDOT
S# M3HD NOO-OVA
V# MIHD NOD-OVA
£# MIHD NOD-OVA
Z# M3HD NOD-OVA
L# M3IHD NOD-OVA
L M3YD ONiAA0d 43MOd
P# MIHD HIvd3y
£# MIHO dIvd3ay
Z# M3AD dIvday
L# M3HD dIvd3ad
IVHINTD-SWILSAS NOILO3TI0D
Z# M3YD NOISIATTAL
b M3YD NOISIAGT3L
MY NI HIMOJ
MIHO FITOHNYA
MIHD I18N0YU.L
S3ASN3dX3 ONILYH3IdO



ISINOHAWOD LINNODIV TIVYING / ISINOYJWOD TIVINT SSINISNG.-

£6'166'98% ¥ ¥6'6£6'00/ 08°/66'628'G 08°€0¥'019 {SSO1) IWODNI 13N

00°0% 000% (15288'8¢19) 00°0$ (..) SSO1 2vIr039

62'¥9L'v/ES ov'vZZ IS1S 000% 00°0% SININISHNGWITY YN

(00°'168'6€$) 00'0% 00'0$ 00'0% S3VIANAS 3AISLNO

¥¥'829'62$ 00°0% 00'0$ 00'0% 3NTVA ALY3d0¥d d31vyNOa

($9'¥60'2£%) 00°0% {,9'988'¢61$) (£18'988'¢61%) SHIYdIY AONIDHIWT

S9'P8L'091'v$ 8v'L12'6vS% 81'/92'291'9% 19°062'#08% SWI LI IYNSNNN
340439 (SSOT) IWOINI L3N

0z0Z 0z0Z 1202 1202

31vVA OL ¥V3A ¥3I90120 J1¥A OL ¥YIA 3390100

g aded

120z ‘L€ 18q013Q ‘Aepung BuspuT SUIUOR UL dy) Jo
JuaWale}s SWOdU|
131eMBISEAN Y0¥ 3T YHON



(5)

BRIDGEWAY PUMP STATION GRAVITY CONVERSION

Staff received bids for the “Bridgeway Pump Station Gravity Conversion” on Thursday, October
28, 2021 at 10:00 AM. The Project consists of installing approximately 2,367 linear feet of 8”

sanitary sewer main to decommission the Bridgeway Pump Station.

The low bid was submitted by Diamond Construction in the amount of $294,995.00. A copy of

the Bid Tabulation is attached for review.

There is $294,995.00 in the proposed 2022 Budget for the Bridgeway Pump Station Gravity

Conversion.

ACTION REQUESTED:

Authorize staff to award the contract for the Bridgeway Pump Station Gravity Conversion to
Diamond Construction in the amount of $294,995.00.

MR
¥



€
05'5£8'c0¢$
oo'008'e $ 00'008'c
0020zl $ 009
00'695°9} $ 002
00'029'cZ $ o000l
00°000'Z} $ 000002
00°000't $ oool
O0'051'6E $ 0061
00°000'Z4 $ 00000
00°0S€'} $ 00622
00°000°12 $ ooooi'z
- $ oszl
00002'1 $ 002l
00°0SL'y $ 056
00°0€2'E $ 058
05'Z0v'0l $ 052
00Z12'se $ 00'ee
00°000'9 $ 000009
00°000'02 $ 0000002
00°000°8C $ 00°000'8Z

unowy  edud yun
Bupeaeoxy ejjuesssy

[}
...m.

\\\\“

W Lo

*o

¥

1SYeMBISEAN %00 ST UHON
_— 3'd ‘Aqiey §oog

-2/ L&
— \\\ I\\\_

L20Z 'L 1290100 PaAIsoas spIq o Adod 1081100 pue sn) e 1 sI) ey Aiueo Aqaiay |

*U33ANIONT

’
w0 e
o289

- 3 L1122 ¥V “490Y eI YHON

ald winaneq o0y

iejema)sep )0y 8 YHON

"I'd ‘Aquay noag

14 £ I
67'552'80v$ 0S°195°12€3 00°566'v6Z$
00'05Z'LZ $ o000sZ'Le $ 000056 $ 00006 $ 0000L'Z $ 000012 $ 3 'S1
9L's0LLL $ 8z $ 002Z02'¥L $ 009 $ 009976 $ 00V $ 19E'T 41
G8'¢05's) $ S5'9 $ 00z0Z'vL $ 009 $ 006e8'sl $ 00§ $ 29€'C El
26'000'91L $ 99 $ 002P5'L9 $ 009C $ 00'9092F $ 008l $  292'C 41
00'005'92 $ 00005'9Z $ 000008 $ 00000'8 $ 00009 $ 00009's $ 3 s
00°059'C $ 059¢ $ 00005 $ 00%z $ 00000t § 000} $ 004 ‘A'S
0L'€6v'04 $ 66E $ 00008'92 $ 0001 $ 0009C's $ 00T $ 0£9'C ‘A'S
00°000'2E $ 00000'2ZE $ 0000S'Ch $ 0000521 $ 0000S'OL $ 000059l $ I Yoe3z
2008L'y $ 1982 $ 00008'L $ 0000S $ 00888 $ oospl $ 9 A
00°005'8S $ 00058'G $ 00059'LT $ 0069L'c $ 0000262 $ 000Z6'C $ ol yoez
- $ 006 $ - $ 00621 $ = $ 00cy $ ] 41
00°000' $ 000¢ $ 000s2'9 $ 0529 $ 0000L'C $ 00l $ aol ‘41
00°059'€l $ 0¢'Le $ 0000022 $ 00by $ 00°00S'2L $ 00SC $ a5} 41
02'8r9's $ 6g6Z $ 00oLL'etL $ 0sve $ 0009g's $ 00322 $ oge 41
£L°005'08 $ 6612 $ 000i9'Lp $ Qo0e $ 00996'vC $ 008l $ 28€°L 41
LSE0S'TLL $ esiv $ 09'G6£'08 $ 059¢ $ 002IZ'se $ o009E ¢ 19€'T 47
00°000'8 $ 000008 $ 00008'C $ 0000S'Z $ 000052 $ 0000G'Z $ i ‘81
00'009'6 $ 000096 $ 00005'2 $ 000082 $ 000026 $ 00002'6 $ 3 81
00°000'9) $ 00000'0L $ 0000002 $ 0000002 $ 0000L'%) $ 0000L'%L $ b 81
unoury asud Jun unowy  aaud Wun junowy adud yun Anuend suun
U0IIINIISUC) Ajlwe] SOJaUSI) uopanysuo) sejfog uoiINSLOY pucuelllg

NV 00:0T e TZ0Z ‘8T 490300 uo Suuado pig

juey pig
sjejol

(wnnoeA pue JE) suleyy Jamag PUE SIJOYUB Jo Buisa] 5l

Malnal aouedasoy o) sulepy James Agjues ALDD 8L

JoILOD UoISOIS /Buous; IS 1

UoHEJO}Sal Pedl S5820y al

wayshg Majes youal) S

110s do} O . PUB POS PIIOS Ypm UONEIO}SaI UoiRjabap bl

(XIAl JSMOpP|IM) PSS PUE MENS LJIM UOHEIO)S3I UoneaBap <l

ypdap /| 18 sjouew asnoybop 9 |ejsuy) zh

8< U)dap B(OYUBI .y PAEPUE)S [le)su] L

uidap .90 Je aloUUBW . PAEPUESS |EISU|

yidap ,Z1 < Iy40eq PUE YouaiL

ndap Z}-0} |(tsioed pue youas)

Wdap 01-g IIPORY PUE Youal ]

uidap ,g-9 B0 pue youslL

wdap -0 (1o PUE YouaiL

92 HAS IAd .8 lIesu)

$30UBINSU| JO SSIBIYBD

> 2

spuog uawhed pue soUBULIONSH

- N ™M ¥ O N~

uoneziiqop

uonduasag O way

Ann 1aremaisep 320y 3117 YHUON
uopE}jIqeYyey UoISIdAU0Y AjiAeiS) uopels dungd Aemabplg

199yg uogeInqge] pig

T jo T 98ed




(6)

DIXIE AND BARING CROSS BASINS PIPE BURSTING 2021 REHABILITATION
PROJECT

Staff received bids for the “Dixie and Baring Cross Basins Pipe Bursting 2021 Rehabilitation
Project” on Thursday, October 7, 2021, at 1:00 PM. The Project consists of rehabilitation of
approximately 18,456 linear feet of 6” and 8” sanitary sewer mains via the pipe bursting method

and reconnection of approximately 398 active services.

The low bid was submitted by Burkhalter Technologies, Inc. in the amount of $1,275,595.00.

A copy of the Bid Tabulation is attached for review.

ACTION REQUESTED:

Authorize staff to award the contract for the Dixie and Baring Cross Basins Pipe Bursting
2021 Rehabilitation Project to Burkhalter Technologies, Inc. in the amount of $1,275,595.00.

MR
¥



Page 1 0f1

Bid Tabulation Sheet
Dixie and Baring Cross Basins Pipe Bursting 2021 Rehabilitation
North Little Rock Wastewater Utility

Item No.

© ® N @ m e w N

=3

12

BEABHERLL2EBLEUEEHLEBL2EBEIBREEYEN

Description

Mohilization

Performance and Payment Bonds

Certificates of Insurances

Clean and TV 6" Sanitary Sewer Mains

Pipe Burst 6" to 8" HDPE

Clean and TV 8" Sanitary Sewer Mains

Fips Burst 8" to 8 HDPE

Pipe Burst 8" to 10° HDPE

Pipe Burst 6" to 8" by means of static pull method
Pipe Burst 8" to 8" by means of static pull method
Asphalt Strest Repair

Asphalt Alley/DrivesParking Repair

4" Service Rainstatement (Machine Dig)

4" Service Reinstatement (Hand Dig)

4" Service Line Replacement

4" Service Line-Additional Footage

4" Double Cleanout

Standard 4' Manhole 0-6' depth

Standard 4' Manhole, Additionat Depth

Abandon and Grout Fill Manhale

Point Repair (Paved Areas) 0-8' depth

Paint Repair (Paved Arsas) per vertical foot over &' depth

Class 7 materil compacted backfil in rench for Paved Reconnection or Repairs

Point Repair (Nan-Paved Areas) 0-6' Depth
Point Repalr {Non-Paved Areas) per vertical foot over 6' depth
Replace Cancrate Driveway (4“)
Replace Concrete Sidewalk
Curb and Gutter Replacement
Solid Sod and Soil Replacement
Fence Removal and Raplacement
Remave and Replace Concrete Ditch/Slab
Trench Safety System
Acceptance Inspection by CCTV
Traffic Contral
Seeding and Mulching
Remove Tree>€" Diameater at 4.5' from Ground Level
Retalning Wall Removal and Replacement
Construct Concrete Storm Drain Conflict Box- Minimum 5' x 5'
Install 8" PYC by Means of Open-Cut Construction
Trench and Backill for Open-Cut 0'-6' Depth
Trench and Backdill for Open-Cut 6'-8' Depth
Trench and Backdil for Open-Cut &-10' Depth
Trench and Backfill for Open-Cut 10™-12' Depth
Trench and Backfil for Open-Cut 12" Depth
Service Connection Verification Dig
Replace Concrete Outsida Drop with DIP Qutside Drop (0-12)
Replace Concrete Outside Drop with PVC Outside Drop (Additional Depth)
Instell 8" High Early Strength 4500 PS!
Box Culvert Crassing
Totals
Bid Rank

ENGINEER:

i%cemfy thatt is is a true and oon'ect copy of bids received October 7, 2021.

¥t —

Scott Kerby, P.B=
North Little Rock Wastewater

Bid Opening on October 7, 2021 at 1:00 PM

Ine.
Units Quantity Unit Price Amount UnitPrice  Amount
LS. 1§ 4000000 § 40,00000 $ 4,00000 § 4,000.00
Ls. 1§ 3000000 $ 30,00000 $ 2480000 § 24,600.00
LS. 1§ 2000000 § 20,0000 § 10.000.00 $ 10,000.00
LF. 13,187 § 400 § 5274800 3 350 § 46,154.50
LE. 13,167 § 000 § THI,22000 § 4000 $ 527,480.00
LF. 5269 § 400 s 2107600 $ 350 § 18,441.50
LF. 515 § 6000 $ 30954000 $ 4000 § 206,360.00
LF. 110§ 12000 $ 1320000 $ 5000 5.500.00
LE. 200 § 3000 § 600000 § 4000 § £.000.00
LF. 200 % 3000 § 600000 § 4000 § 8,000.00
sY. S0 § 19500 § g7.50000 $ 8500 S 42,500.00
8. s % 17500 § 1312500 § 8500 § 6.375.00
Each £ 12500 § 4975000 § 50000 § 188,000.00
Each 10§ 1500 § 15000 § 5000 § 500.00
LF. 1000 § 200 $ 200000 § 600 § 6,000.00
LF. 0§ 200 § 100000 § 1200 § 6,000.00
Each 100§ 6500 § 650000 $§ 10000 § 10,000.00
Each 5 5 350000 3 1750000 § 220000 $ 11,000.00
VF. 0§ 500 $ 25000 § 500 § 250.00
Each 5 § 40000 § 200000 S 25000 $ 1,260.00
Each 5 8 500 § 12500 § 25000 $ 1,250.00
V.F. 10§ 100 $ 1000 § 5000 § 500.00
Tons 50§ 8500 § 4750000 $ 3000 § 15,000.00
Each 5§ 2500 § 12500 5 5000 § 250,00
V.F. 0 s 100 § 1000 5 1000 3 100.00
sY. o $ 7000 $ 280000 5 10000 § 4,000.00
sY. 0 s 6000 § 60000 § 11000 § 1.100.00
LF. 50 1800 § 0C0 5 000 § 1.500.00
sY. 310 § 250 § 775000 § 350 § 10,850.00
LF. 200 5 3000 § 600000 5 k00 § 7.000.00
sY. 0 s 3000 § 30000 § 8500 § 860.00
LS. 1§ 4000000 § 4000000 5 200000 § 2,000.00
LF. 18456 § 150 § 2768400 § 150§ 27,684.00
LS. 15 3000000 § 3000000 § 700000 § 7,000.00
sY. 0 s 035 § 250 § 500 § 50.00
Each s s 8500 § 42500 § 15000 § 750,00
LF. 2 s 300 $ 60000 § 3000 § 600,00
Each 1 5 575000 $ 575000 § 150000 § 1,500.00
LF. 100 0§ 75.00 3 750000 § 8000 § 8,000.00
LF. 0§ 6000 § 120000 $ 1000 § 200.00
LF. x s 5500 § 110000 $ 1500 $ 300.00
LF. 0§ 4500 $ 20000 § 2000 § 400.00
LF. 20 s 3500 $ 70000 § 2500 § 500.00
LF. 0 % 0 $ 60000 $§ 3000 § 600.00
Each 0 s 5000 § 50000 § 5000 § 500.00
Each 20 s 15000 § 300000 $ 180000 § 36,000.00
V.F. 20 - 1000 $ 20000 § 1000 § 200.00
sY. - I 11000 5 220000 $ 15000 § 3,000.00
Each 1§ 550000 $ 550000 § 250000 $ 250000
$1,673,540.50 $1,275,595.00
2 1

Scott Kerby, P.E.

North Little Rock Wastewater

7400 Baucum Pike

North Little Rock, AR 72117

IIII'

k&
LICENSED

L R R R I T B T L R T N N N T S r oV,

Kajacs
Unit Price: Amount

2600000 $ 2600000
3000000 §  30,000.00
260000 § 2,600.00
300 5 3956100
9500 5 125276500
300 5 15807.00
10000 §  515900.00
15000 5 1650000
40000 § 6000000
40000 §  B0,000.00
20000 §  100.000.00
8000 § £,000.00
60000 § 23880000
200000 $ 2000000
7200 § 7200000
7200 § 3600000
80000 § 8000000
370000 §  18,500.00
60000 $  30.000.00
80000 $ 4,000.00
480000 $  24,000.00
40000 $ 4,000.00
5000 $ 2500000
380000 $  19,00000
40000 § 4,000.00
21500 § 8,800.00
20000 § 2,000.00
4000 $ 2,000.00
1500 §  46500.00
2000 § 400000
22500 § 2,250.00
2344600 §  23.449.00
300 5 S5368.00
5000000 $  50.000.00
2000 § 200.00
220000 $  11.000.00
4000 800.00
800000 $ 8,000.00
11000 § 11,0000
5000 $ 4.000.00
500 S 1,100.00
7500 § 1,500.00
10000 § 2,000.00
14000 $ 2,800,00
60000 § 6,000.00
500000 $  100,000.00
50000 $  10,00000
25000 § 5,000.00
500000 S 5,000.00
$3,100,000.00

4
ENGINEERING DEPT

$
$
5

L L I I I R L T i R I I I T I I S S PSP

PM Construction & Rehab
UnitPrice  Amount

60,000.00 % 60,000.00
3000000 $ 30,000.00
120000 $ 1,200.00
250 3 32,967.50
6000 $  791.220.00
250 § 1317250
6000 §  305540.00
7000 § 7.700.00
9000 § 18,000.00
9000 $ 18,000 00
15000 § 75,000.00
15000 $ 11.250.00
50000 $ 189,000.00
650.00 $ 8,500.00
300§ 35,000.00
350 % 17.500.00
385.00 38,500.00
4,40000 $ 22,000.00
15000 $ 7.500.00
85000 $ 4,250.00
15000 3 750.00
7500 % 750.00
4500 $ 22,500.00
25000 $ 1,250.00
700 S 750.00
14000 § 5,800.00
14000 § 1,400.00
5500 § 2.750.00
1000 $ 31,000.00
7200 § 14.400.00
12000 $ 1,200.00
120000 § 1.200.00
175§ 32,208.00
600000 § 6,000.00
1200 % 120.00
100000 % 5,000.00
10000 $ 2,000.00
3,50000 $ 3,500.00
5000 % §,000.00
2800 $ 560.00
5000 $ 1,000.00
6500 % 1,300.00
7500 $ 1,500,00
80.00 § 1,600.00
50000 $ 5,000.00
300000 % 60,000.00
4,00000 $ 80,000,00
15000 § 3,000.00
10,000.00 § 10,000.00

$1,999,728.00
3

PROFLSSI

=




(7)

WHITE OAK TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION SOUTH SIDE EVALUATION

Michael Marlar, P.E. of Halff Associates developed an Engineering Report on the need to
expand the White Oak Treatment Plant based on near-future diversion of wastewater from the
Maumelle Treatment Plant. Mr. Marlar was tasked to evaluate the conditions and refine the
costs for the possibility of constructing lagoons South of the existing White Oak Treatment
Plant.

Attached is another analysis by Mr. Marlar, P.E. to include the construction of a lagoon South
of the existing facilities.

ACTION REQUESTED:
Discuss the options for future expansion and make a recommendation in the best interest of
the Utility to proceed with an offer to purchase.



Properties Considered for Future Expansion of the North Little Rock
Wastewater (NLRWW) Utility’s White OQak Treatment Plant

The following evaluation of Jand requirements regarding three areas considered for future
expansion of the NLRWW Utility’s White Oak Treatment Plant - Area | consists of
approximately 41.82 acres and is located northwest of the existing lagoons. Area 2 consists of
approximately 37.66 acres located directly south of the existing lagoons. Area 3 consists of
approximately 20.85 acres directly west of the existing lagoons. Range of costs for expanding
the lagoon system for the west and south sites is identified in Exhibit 1. Exhibit 2 shows a plan
view of proposed lagoon system on the south site. Exhibit 3 includes photographs certain
features of the south site.

Area 1 (Northwest):
Positive Considerations:

e Largest of the three alternatives with 41.82 acres.
o The terrain (contours) of the property facilitate the construction of new lagoons.

Negative Considerations:

o 8.1 of the 41.82 acres is in the floodway and cannot be used for improvements
that would benefit the Utility.

o The property is in close proximity of the existing commercial and industrial
businesses located adjacent to and on the west and south side of the property. A
buffer would have to be maintained which would further reduce the area of the
property that could be used for expansion.

e [Economics — Due to the location of this site with respect to the existing lagoons,
significant additional cost would be incurred for additional quantity of pipe and
fittings to be constructed to this site. Additionally, due to being the largest of the
three sites, this property would likely be the most expensive to obtain.

o This site would require some clearing of trees.

e Property is zoned “Conservation” and it is not a permitted use. Zoning change to
12 would be difficult and highly unlikely.

Area 2 (South):
Positive Considerations:
e This site is located due south and includes 37.66 acres.

e The site is the closest to the White Qak Treatment Plant’s effluent flow
measurement flume and 427 outlet pipe.



Negative Constderations:

s This site has a high voltage power line easement for NLR hydroelectric facility
along the north part of the property. Improvements would have to be located
south of this easement which reduces the usable property.

e The available area for constructing a new lagoon is smaller than the west site.

e The site also has a cell tower located on the westerly part of the property which
would cause future improvements to be located on the south part of the property.

¢ A pond and tributary stream are located along the north part of the property and
identified in the Exhibits 2 and 3. Corps of Engineers permits would have to be
obtained for construction activity in this area of the site.

¢ Exhibit 3 photographs identify an area that has been excavated over
approximately 20 years and is approximately 10°-12’ lower than the adjacent
property. This area is also identified in Exhibit 2 as a “No-Build” area and it was
so designated on a previous unrecorded preliminary plat. This excavated area
would need to be filted and special measures as designated by the geotechnical
engineer will have to be undertaken if any construction takes place in this area.

e A part of this site is located in the floodway, reducing its usable property.

o Although this site would be useful if the Utility transitioned from lagoons to a
mechanical treatment plant, that is not the current plan as this type of treatment
would not be economical. The preliminary estimate of a mechanical treatment
plant is $ 38 million compared to § 8.9 million for expanding the current Jagoon
process to the proposed West Site. The probable range of cost for constructing
the new lagoon on the South Site is § 15.57 million.

» Constructing new lagoons at the South Site would incur significantly more cost
than the West Site due to additional quantities of pipe and fittings, and filling and
grading the previously excavated areas, causing more cost to rate payers.

e The South Site is in close proximity to the Burns Park Soccer Complex.

o This site would require clearing of more trees than the west site.

e The existing pedestrian trail would have to be relocated.

Area 3 (West):
Positive Considerations:

¢ Most economical site due to being situated closest to the existing lagoons thereby
reducing pipe and fittings required for future expansion. This site would enable
the new lagoon to use the existing west levee of the existing west lagoon thereby
reducing construction cost.

o This site is not located in a floodway.

o Although not as large as the other two sites, it includes adequate acreage for the
utility’s expansion needs.

o The terrain (contours) of the site facilitate construction of the new lagoons.

o The zoning for this area is a permitted use by right.



Negative Considerations:

e Not as large as the other two sites.



EXHIBIT 1 -
POSSIBLE RANGE OF CONSTRUCTION COSTS
WEST AND SOUTH SITES



PROBABLE RANGE OF COSTS
WHITE OAK WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION

Prepared For. NLRWW Ultility
Prepared By: Halff Associates
Date: November, 2021

EXPAND LAGOONS WEST 1 LAGOON 4 MGD TOTAL CAPACITY 12 MGD
1 LEVEE FILL 110000 cY $ 1200 $ 1,320.000.00
2 EXCAVATION 125000 cY $ 13.00 % 1.625,000.00
3 CLAYLINER 65000 cY 3 1500 $§ 975,000.00
4  AERATION EQUIPMENT 15 LS $ 655,000.00 § 982,500.00
5 YARD PIPING 1 LS S 425,000.00 § 425,000.00
6  CLEAN UP. TESTING, MISC. 1 LS $ 158,000.00 $§ 158,000.00
7  ELECTRICAL 1 LS $ 325,000.00 % 325,000.00
8 DEWATERING 1 LS $ 17500000 $ 175,000.00
8  SEEDING 16000 SY $ 175 % 28,000.00
10 GRAVEL 5000 sY $ 650 $ 32,500.00
11 SECURITY FENCE 2800 LF 5 25.00 § 70,000.00
12 GRAVEL AND CONCRETE 1 LS $ 425,000.00 § 425,000 00
13 FLOW DIVISION BOX STRUCTURE 1 LS $ 250,00000 $ 250,000.00
14 INSTRUMENTATION 1 LS $ 85.000.00 § 85,000.00
15  MISC. ITEMS 1 LS 3 30,00000 $ 30,000 00
16 LAND COST ACQUISITION 18.7 AC $ -
SUBTOTAL $ 6,916,000.00
CONTINGENCY $ 1,037,400.00
ENGINEERING $ 54,408 00
TOTAL $ 8,907,408.00
EXPAND LAGOONS SOUTH 1 LAGOON 4 MGD TOTAL CAPACITY 12 MGD
1 LEVEE FILL 150000 cy % 1200 $ 1,800,000.00
2  EXCAVATION 180000 cY $ 13.00 $ 2,340,000.00
3 CLAY UINER 65000 cY 3 15.00 $  975.000.00
4  AERATION EQUIPMENT 1.5 LS $ 655.000.00 § 982,500.00
S  YARD PIPING 1 LS $ 775.000.00 $ 775,000.00
6 CLEAN UP, TESTING, MISGC. 1 LS 5 168,000.00 $ 158,000.00
7  ELECTRICAL 1 LS $ 325,000.00 $ 325,000.00
8 OEWATERING 1 LS $ 175,000.00 3 175,000 00
9 SEEDING 16000 Sy $ 175 & 28,000 00
10  GRAVEL 5000 sY $ 650 § 32,500.00
11 SECURITY FENCE 2800 LF 3 2500 § 70,000.00
12 GRAVEL AND CONCRETE 1 LS $ 42500000 § 425,000.00
13 FLOW DIVISION BOX STRUCTURE 1 LS 3 250,000.00 $ 250,000.00
14 INSTRUMENTATION 1 LS 3 85,000.00 § 85.000.00
15  MISC. ITEMS 1 LS 3 30,000.00 $ 30,000.00
16 LAND COST ACQUISITION 376 AC $ -
17  ADDITIONAL INLET PIPING 30" 3980 LF S 12000 § 477,600.00
18  ADDITIONAL FILL AND GRADING IN 137000 cY 3 23.00 & 3,151,000.00
EXCAVATED AREA
SUBTOTAL $ 12,089,800.00
CONTINGENCY $ 1,813.440.00
ENGINEERING $ 1,668,364.80

YOTAL $ 15,571,404.80




EXHIBIT 2 -
PROPOSED LOCATION OF NEW LAGOON
ON SOUTH SITE



I-_——-— — —_—— ——————
L YN
%
),

3 B e .m..h\..
; : SN0 DV ITL
| T. - NOO9' 1
| .

JINLINYLS NOILIONANI
1VIIW3IHI ONILSIX3

XOd NUISINIY foizﬁm_xw TN

——

-~ = 7350d0¥d

ALd31d0dd

\I_ ININTSNI

d1a .0¢
—— Q35040¥d

4




EXHIBIT 3 - PHOTOGRAPHS OF SOUTH SITE



AREA 2 (SOUTH) PHOTOGRAPHS

South site includes an existing pond and ﬁ : .
tributary to White Oak Bayou identified in
the photograph. A Corps of Engineers
permit would have to be acquired for any
construction activity in this area, If
improvements are constructed in such a way
that the tributary is disrupted, the creek or
drainage path would have to be relocated.
The pond and tributary causes a natural
separation between the existing treatment
plant site and the South Site.

The South Site
includes a
power line and e
easement
located along
the North side
of the site,
pond and

located along the north side of the

g2 tributary.




The South Site has been
excavated, apparently since
approximately 2003, based
on aerial photography.

The photograph shows the
area previously excavated
with respect to an existing
trail on the left (south) side
of the excavated area.
From our observation the
excavation 1s
approximately 10°-12’
lower than the higher
ground.

P4
4 !
(b,‘ .

!
'I

M




A pond is also located along the south
boundary of the site as identified in the
photograph to the right.

The photograph to the right
identifies a low depressed area
in the excavated part of the
site and identified in the aerial
imagery as an cxisting marsh.

Corps of Engineers permitting
would likely be required to
place fill material in this site.



Cell tower located west of the South
Site.

€Or,

o



(8)

BUDGET FOR 2022

Ms. Gina Briley, Finance Administrator, will present the Draft Budget for 2022.

ACTION REQUESTED:



NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER

DRAFT BUDGET FOR 2022




NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER
2022 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS

The operating revenue for 2022 is based on the current rates, a
$18.05 minimum for 400CF plus $5.64 for each 100CF over 400.
The labor budget includes a 3% cost of living increase for current
employees. The increase in labor cost for current employees is
around $152,000. The labor budget also includes ten unfilled
positions, anticipated overtime based on historical data, and set
amounts for an incentive bonus program and administrative
realignments.

Since the consumer price index as of September 30™ for the last
twelve months was 5.4%, the other operating expenses for 2022
reflects an increase of 5% over the total projected 2021 expense. If
an expense was known to be more than 5%, that amount was
included in the budget.

The projected cash flow assumes that every item on the capital
addition pages, and the 2022 major construction projects will be
completed during the year.



North Little Rock Wastewater
Income Statement
Budget For 2022

Operating Revenue

Residential & Commercial Charges
Industry Charges

Sherwood Treatment Charge

Permit, Inspection & Plan Review Charges

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses

Collection Systems Department
Engineering Department
Environmental Compliance Department
Treatment Department

Administration Department
Depreciation-Non Vehicle

Pension

Computerized Maintenance Management System
GASB 45 OPEB Obligation

Emergency Repairs

Damages to Customer Property

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income

Non-Operating Income
Interest Income

Total Non-Operating Income

Non-Operating Expenses
Interest Expense

Total Non-Operating Expenses

Net Income

$21,469,100
$ 1,875,100
$ 241,900

3 57,700

$ 3,540,200
$ 853,100
$ 1,147,800
$ 4,902,800
$ 2,284,000
$ 4,833,100
$ 811,000
$ 160,000
3 30,000
$ 2,000,000
3

100,000

3 29,200

$ 1,226,800

$23,643,800

$20,662,000

$ 2,981,800

$ 29,200

_$ 1,226,800

_$ 1,784,200

PAGE 1




NOTE:

PAGE 2

North Little Rock Wastewater
Operating Revenue for 2022

NLR-Inside Service Charges $ 14,536,500
NLR-Outside Service Charges $ 3,222,200
Maumelle Service Charges $ 3,351,500
Treatment Charge-Sherwood $ 241,900
Industry Service Charges $ 1,631,100
Industry Surcharge/Penalty Charges $ 241,800
Industry Late Fee Charges $ 2,200
Res. & Com. Late Fee Charges $ 358,900
Connection Permits Charges $ 36,700
Tap & Street Cut Permit Charges $ 12,300
Review Plans & Specifications $ 8,700

$ 23,643,800

The service charge revenue is based on the current rate ordinance.




Trouble Crew
Manhole Crew
Power Drive Crew
Television Crew #1
Television Crew #2

General Collection Systems Dept.

Repair Crew #1

Repair Crew #2

Repair Crew #3

Repair Crew #4

Power Rodding Crew-#1
Vac-con Crew #1

Vac-con Crew #2

Vac-con Crew #3

Vac-con Crew #5

Survey Department
Location Work
Engineering-Office
General Engineering Department
Environmental Compliance
Treatment Department
Pump Station Department
Administration Department

Computerized Maintenance Management System

Damages to Customer Property
Depreciation-Non Vehicle
Pension

GASB 45-OPEB Obligation
Emergency Repairs

North Little Rock Wastewater
Total Operating Expenses

PAGE 3

Budget for 2022
LABOR OTHER TOTAL
$ 89,000 % 21,300 $ 110,300
$ 90,600 $ 20,200 $ 110,800
$ 57,600 $ 5,000 $ 62,600
$ 70,200 $ 76,300 $ 146,500
$ 69,500 $ 76,300 $ 145,800
$ 748600 $ 666,800 $ 1415400
$ 117,200 $ 66,700 $ 183,900
$ 117,000 $ 66,700 $ 183,700
$ 112,400 $ 66,700 $ 179,100
$ 104,100 $ 66,700 $ 170,800
$ 65,400 $ 5,000 $ 70,400
$ 90,400 $ 115,900 § 206,300
$ 68,000 $ 115900 $ 183,900
$ 68,000 $ 115,900 $ 183,900
$ 70,900 $ 115,900 $ 186,800
$ 63,100 $ 5000 $ 68,100
$ 33,100 $ 13,600 $ 46,700
$ 328,400 $ 46,900 % 375,300
$ 133,000 $ 230,000 $ 363,000
$ 679,700 $ 468,700 $ 1,147,800
$ 1,499,100 $ 2,460,500 $ 3,959,600
$ 251,300 $ 691,900 $ 943,200
$ 951,000 $ 1,333,000 $ 2,284,000
$ -9 160,000 $ 160,000
$ -3 100,000 $ 100,000
$ - $ 4,833,100 $ 4,833,100
$ - % 811,000 $ 811,000
$ -3 30,000 $ 30,000
3 - $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000
$ 5,877,000 $ 14,785,000 $ 20,662,000




North Little Rock Wastewater
Labor Expense

Budget for 2022
Trouble Crew $ 89,000
Manhole Crew 3 90,600
Power Drive Crew $ 57,600
Television Crew #1 $ 70,200
Television Crew #2 $ 69,500
General Collection Systems Dept. 3 614,000
Payroll Taxes-Collection Systems $ 134,600
Repair Crew #1 3 117,200
Repair Crew #2 3 117,000
Repair Crew #3 3 112,400
Repair Crew #4 3 104,100
Power Rodding Crew-#1 3 65,400
Vac-con Crew #1 3 90,400
Vac-con Crew #2 3 68,000
Vac-con Crew #3 3 68,000
Vac-con Crew #5 $ 70,900
Survey Department $ 63,100
Location Work 3 33,100
Engineering-Office 3 328,400
General Engineering Department $ 94,300
Payroll Taxes-Engineering 3 38,700
Environmental Compliance $ 632,000
Payroll Taxes-Environmental Compl. 3 47,100
Treatment Department $ 1,377,600
Payroll Taxes-Treatment 3 121,500
Pump Station Department 3 251,300
Administration Department $ 762,900
Payroll Taxes-Admin 3 66,000
Longevity Pay 3 62,700
30 Year Bonus 3 6,000
Incentive/Merit Program 3 7,500
Administrative Realignment 3 45,900

$ 5,877,000

Note: Includes a 3% cost of living increase. Also includes ten unfilled or new positions.

PAGE 4




North Little Rock Wastewater
Other Operating Expenses
Budget for 2022

Trouble Crew

Manhole Crew

Power Drive Crew

Television Crew #1

Television Crew #2

General Collection Systems Dept.
Repair Crew #1

Repair Crew #2

Repair Crew #3

Repair Crew #4

Power Rodding Crew #1
Vac-Con Crew #1

Vac-Con Crew #2

Vac-Con Crew #3

Vac-Con Crew #5

Survey Crew

Location Work
Engineering-Office

General Engineering Dept.
Environmental Compliance
Treatment Dept.

Pump Station Dept.
Administrative Dept.
Computerized Maintenance Management System
Damages to Customer Property
Depreciation-Non Vehicle
Pension

GASB 45 OPEB Obligation
Emergency Repairs

$ 21,300
$ 20,200
$ 5,000
$ 76,300
$ 76,300
$ 666,800
$ 66,700
$ 66,700
$ 66,700
$ 66,700
$ 5,000
$ 115,900
$ 115,900
$ 115,900
$ 115,900
$ 5,000
$ 13,600
$ 46,900
$ 230,000
$ 468,700
$ 2,460,500
$ 691,900
$ 1,333,000
$ 160,000
$ 100,000
$ 4,833,100
$ 811,000
$ 30,000

$ 2,000,000

$ 14,785,000

Note: A 5% increase was assumed for items like supplies, repairs and rentals.

PAGE 5




PAGE 6

North Little Rock Wastewater
Non-Operating Revenue for 2022

Interest Income-Securities $ 11,200
Interest Income-Checking $ 18,000

29200




North Little Rock Wastewater
Non-Operating Expense
Budget for 2022

Interest on Debt-Series 2001
Interest on Debt-Series 2008
Interest on Debt-Series 2012
Interest on Debt-Series 2016
Interest on New Loan

44,500
208,600
384,000
432,200
157,500

1,226,800

PAGE 7




North Little Rock Wastewater
Projected Cash Flow
Budget for 2022
Cash & Certificate of Deposit Balance as of 1/1/22
Add Budgeted 2022 Net Income
Add Budgeted 2022 Depreciation
Add Budgeted 2022 Bio-Solid Reserve
Add Budgeted 2022 GASB 45 Reserve
Less 2022 Principal Payments on Loans
Less Purchase of 2022 Capital Additions-(Assuming all is needed)
Less 2022 Major Construction Projects
Add Anticipated Draws from ADFA

Projected Cash & Certificate of Deposit Balance as of 12/31/22

$ 17,587,514
$ 1,784,200
$ 4,833,100
$ 216,400
$ 30,000
$ (3,057,900)
$ (3,048,000)

$(27,539,600)

_$ 17,900,000

$ 8,705,714

PAGE 8




North Little Rock Wastewater
List of Capital Additions
Budget for 2022

Collection Systems Department

2-Class 7 Dump Trucks-Repair Crews-Have Bid in 2021
Class 8 Dump Truck-Have Bid in 2021
2-Excavator's- Repair Crew's-1 ordered 2021
2-1 Ton Pickups with Utility Beds-Repair Crews
Forklift Replacement

3-GPS Data Collectors

Trailer-Repair Crew

Office Furniture

2-Pipe & Cable Locators

TX 361-1, WRT 3 Transporter 6"

Bulidozer Nozzel12"-59" with Roll Cage

Engineering Department

Survey Related Equipment

Flow Meters/Rain Gauges & Calibration Equipment
1/2 fton Extended Cab Pickup-New Position

Engineering Software Purchases (InfroMaster, Civil 3D, Flowlink, etc.)

Office Partitions/Office Furniture

Environmental Compliance

All-Weather Automatic Samplers & Sampler Structures
Lab Grade Dishwasher-Replacement

Autoclave

Incubator BOD Replacement

Ice machine

Bench top DO Meter

Heating & Drying Oven

ph. Meter

Operations Department

Clarifier Weir Covers for Faulkner
Faulkner Lake Manhole Rehabilitation
Valve Replacements

Pump and VFD Replacements

Aerator Replacements

Pickup Replacement-4X4

Roof Replacements-Maumelle & Five Mile
Maumelle Equipment-Various

2-Chlorine Induction Pumps

New Access Gate & Openers for Five Mile-Solar Area
Service Bed for Unit #149

Zero Turm Mower

Five Mile Aerator Hoist

Vehicle-Chief Operator

PP P PPN PN

9 P PP

PP PP PP

210,000
140,000
120,000
100,000
50,000
30,000
20,000
5,000
12,000
11,000
5,500

50,000
45,000
32,000
20,000

5,000

18,000
12,000
8,000
7,000
5,000
4,000
3,000
3,000

350,000
200,000
375,000
80,000
50,000
28,000
60,000
35,000
20,000
16,000
17,000
15,000
25,000
30,000

PAGE 9

$ 703,500
$ 152,000
$ 60,000

$ 1,301,000




North Little Rock Wastewater
List of Capital Additions
Budget for 2022

Pump Maintenance Department

Pump Station Replacement

Increase Parking Lot Area

Replacement for Unit #83 & Upgrade to a Wrecker
Replacement Pickup-For Pump Crew

One Ton Truck and Bed-to use for Crane

Clayton Chapel Upgrade

1/2 Ton Truck-New Position

Administration Department

Computer Equipment/Software-For Entire Utility
Upgrade Internal Telephone Equipment
Replace Current Copier

Total Capital Additions

P PP PP

O N &

325,000
100,000
41,500
30,000
65,000
65,000

28,000

150,000
20,000
7,000

PAGE 10

$ 654,500

$ 177,000

$ 3,048,000




North Little Rock Wastewater
Major Construction Projects
Budgst for 2022

Projects For 2022
Maumella 10 White Oak Diversion-
Lower Riverside interceptor Rehabiat w: o
Cuntis Sykas & Meadow Parks Pipe Bursting-2022
Upper Riverside Interceplor, Phase 3, CIPF )
Rose City Pipe Bursting-Started in 2021
Dixie and Barring Cross Pipe Bursling-Started in 2021
Curtis Sykes & Meadow Parks CIPP-2022
Unassigned Secondary Sewer Rehabilitation-2022
Rose City CIPP-Stared in 2021
Miscellaneous Line Relocations

Skyline Reroute-3265,000

uUrgenvEmergency Relocations-$300,000
Sludge Removal
Land Purchase for White Ogk
Sewer Syslem Evaluation Survey-Staried in 2021
Engineering Maumelie 10 White Oak Diversion
Bridgeway Pump Station Decommiission
MSI For Fiva Mile Creek Interceptor Renabilitation Project
Odom-8lue Mounlion PS Gravity to New Bedford PS
Dark Hollow Interceplor CiPP-Started n 2021-(F
Bank Stabilization FLTP at Effluent Line
Sewar System Evaluation Survey-2022

Projected Future Projects-2023-2026

Lower Riverside Inlerceplor Rehatr ™" -*ior ~--se 2 & 3-I
Maumelle 10 White Oak Diversion- ' ) :
Unassigned Secondary Sewer Rahabiitation-2023
Unassigned Secondary Sewer Renhabllitation-2024
Unassigned Secondary Sewer Rehabilitation-2025
Unassigned Secondary Sewer Rehabilitati~~ /12

Five Mile Creek Inlerceptor Rehabililali

Snilicutt Interceptor Capacity Upgrades

Dark Holiow Interceptor Relisf Upgrades from 24’ 1o 36"-i
Dark Hollow Recwo0d Tunnal Interceptor, Phase 1

Dark Hollow Redwood Tunnel Interceptor, Phase 2
Sewer System Evaluanon Survey's-4 years

Open Cut Baring Cross

McCalimont PS Gravity to Eurgka 46th PS

Line Relocalion-Donavan Briley

Line Relocslion-Louise Street

$
$
$
S
$
$

$
$
3
3

NN DD D AN

DDA DNDO OO N OO

9,000,000
4,700,000
2,150,000
2,000,000
1,700,000
1,275.800
1,150,000

700,000

$00,000

565.000

800,000
500.000
450,000
300,000
294,000
250,000
205.000
200.000
200.000
200.000

9,600,000
9,200,000
4,000,000
4,000,000
4,000.000
4,000,000
3,400,000
2,400,000
2,000,000
1.500,000
1.000.000
800,000
400,000
205,000
125,000
150,000

$ 27,539,600

346,780,000

PAGE 11




(9)

ROSE CITY AND MILITARY BASINS PIPE BURSTING 2021 REHABILITATION PROJECT
CHANGE ORDER #1

Burkhalter Technologies, Inc. was the low Bidder on April 29, 20201 for the Rose City and

Military Basins Pipe Bursting 2021 Rehabilitation Project and the current contract amount

previously approved by the Committee is $2,091,201.50.

A proposed Change Order is for Burkhalter Technologies, Inc. to haul biosolids from the
Maumelle Water Reclamation Facilities to the White Oak Water Reclamation Facilities for
$330.00 per load using a 4,000-gallon tanker truck. Staffis recommending executing a change

order for a six-month period or up to $71,286 which is the equivalent of 216 trips.

Current Contract Amount: $2,091,201.50
Proposed Change Order #1: $ 71,286.00
Final Contract Amount: $2,162,488.50

The estimated cost for Change Order #1 is $71,286.00 which will be funded through our

General Revenues.

ACTION REQUESTED:

Authorize staff to proceed with the execution of Change Order #1 for Burkhalter
Technologies, Inc. to haul biosolids from the Maumelle Water Reclamation Facility to the
White Oak Water Reclamation Facility for six months.



(10)

PURCHASE NEW TRUCKS FOR
COLLECTION SYSTEMS MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT

The Construction Division of the Collection Systems Maintenance Department is reorganizing
equipment and trucking requirements for daily operations for the four Repair Crews. Due to
the difficulty hiring CDL drivers in the current labor market, a shift in strategy to allow for the
transportation of equipment without the requirement of having a CDL Driver is under way.
Sealed Bids were taken for two Class 7 Dump Trucks and one Class 8 Dump Truck as a total
packaged procurement. The plan is for the two Class 7 Dump Trucks to be used by the repair
crews and for hauling stone or gravel for construction projects. The one Class 8 Dump Truck
will be used to haul biosolids from the Maumelle Water Reclamation Facilities to the White Oak
Water Reclamation Facilities using NLRW personnel to operate.

The results of the Bid Opening on October 26, 2021, is shown in the table below:

Bidder Two Class 7 One Class 8 Total Bid
Trucks Truck
Summit Truck Group $208,450.48 $139,152.96 $347,603.44
Tri State Truck Center, Inc. $198,750.00 $160,491.00 $359,241.00
Custom Truck One Source $218,782.00 $163,869.00 $382,651.00

ACTION REQUESTED:

Authorize staff to purchase two Class 7 Dump Trucks and one Class 8 Dump Truck from
Summit Truck Group in the amount of $347,603.44.

MR
¥





